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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment
risk may be attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability
nor any obligation to forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging
nature of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in which the companies operate.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the Internet website operated
by the Stock Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements in
gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they need to have access to the
GEM website at www.hkgem.com in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liabilities whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or
in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the "Directors”] of Town Health International Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”| collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the "GEM listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that,
to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in
all material respects and not misleading; (2] there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement in this report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and
careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.



12

19

24

32

46

~EEH
CORPORATE INFORMATION

TEHRSE
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

EEEFNWERDMN
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EErEREEERE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS & SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CEEBEREE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEEHRSEE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

%BEHEE
AUDITORS’ REPORT

5%

C o

48
49
51
52
55

173

n t e n t s

AW s R
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

REEERMAER
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BERERER
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Bt 3% W& M
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHEE
FINANCIAL SUMMARY



2

| ANNUAL REPORT 2006 = & & X F § i&)

W

7 T S
CORPORATE INFORMATION

BERBELATFHL

BYFHTES
R 8% 4
A

SRS

NEWERESERSEE

B4 B 5 A CPA, FCCA, ACIS, ACS

ERXIE:

EEFEL

EREES !
BR& 85 & (£/E)
BB AT+

o] [ 2 5 A

THWEES :
FERATAL (Z5)
HETEE
CER IS
EEEL L

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
B o7 B A B 2 A

Executive directors:

Dr. Cho Kwai Chee (Chairman)
Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet

Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin

Ms. Choi Ka Yee, Crystal

Non-executive directors:
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Independent non-executive directors:
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Compliance officer:

Dr. Cho Kwai Chee

Audit committee:
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Authorized representatives:

Dr. Cho Kwai Chee
Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet

Auditors:

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Principal bankers:

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Dah Sing Bank Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Principal share registrar and

transfer office:

Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited
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North Church Street,

George Town

Grand Cayman, Cayman lIslands
British West Indies

Hong Kong branch share registrar

and transfer office:
Tengis Limited

26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,
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Hong Kong

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited

B o # K

2

iz

=l

FR

n

al

W



4 | ANNUAL REPORT 2006 = & & X F § iﬁ)

YN Gl & #
CORPORATE INFORMATION

AfMREE

Ugland House
P.O. Box 309
George Town
Grand Cayman
Cayman Islands

British West Indies

BMRBEERTEEXME

B

R Y H

b H IF 8 3-95%
AREH D
337

E#mes

8138

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
B o7 B A B 2 A

Registered office:
Ugland House

P.O. Box 309

George Town

Grand Cayman

Cayman lIslands

British West Indies

Head office and principal place
of business:

Shop 37, Level 3,

Hilton Plaza Commercial Centre,
3-9 Shatin Centre Street,
Shatin, New Territories

Hong Kong

Stock Code:

8138
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On behalf of the board of directors (“Board”) of Town
Health International Holdings Company Limited (“Town
Health” or the “Company”), | am exceedingly pleased to
report to our shareholders the results of the Company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended
31st March, 2006. In the year, Town Health achieved a
year of robust results with an annual turnover of
approximately HK$231,179,000, marking a record-high

turnover figure since our listing on the Stock Exchange.

Business Review

Fruitful results were gained through a number of continual
business consolidations over the past years. Moreover, in
light of a constantly reviving local economy, increasing health
awareness amongst citizens and a cost-linked medical policy
of the HKSAR government, the market demand for private
medical services was continually on a surging track under
gradually rising public medical services charges. The Group
is well poised to capitalize on this macro-atmosphere of

an expanding market.

As to our core business of healthcare and dental services,
the Group actively added the number of out-patient network
clinics and integrated medical services centers to
approximately 70 over a geographical coverage varying from
Kowloon, New Territories and Hong Kong Island during the
Year. Our number of medical practicing staff was increased
to 66 with an addition of 24 doctors and dentists. This
expanded medical service network created a driving

momentum for a 20.9% growth in our core operations.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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Enhanced competitive edges with increased cost

efficiencies

During the year, notwithstanding that a flurry of private
medical groups emerged in Hong Kong at a speedy pace
and some of them attempted to solicit businesses at low
prices, yet no material impact was imposed to our business.
Internally, staff efficiencies will be enhanced by
strengthening staff training. Externally, communication
network between patients and the Group as well as patients’
confidence in the Group’s medical services will be upgraded
by the Group through the holding of different kinds of
seminars, distribution of our medical and healthcare
magazines on a free-of-charge basis, establishment of health
consulting counters and provision of additional information

to patients on a free-of-charge basis.

With a history of 17 years, Town Health successfully
positioned itself as a brand image of a leading medical
service player backed by a dedicated team of professional
medical personnel caring for patients. The increasingly
enlarging scale of our medical services was an attribute for
our enhanced cost efficiencies and reduced purchasing
costs. Accordingly, despite of new entries of medical groups,
the Group reported an impressive growth in terms of
turnover and profit, as noted from a significant turnaround

in the profit attributable to shareholders in current year.
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Developing life-style healthcare services and

subscription of TH Medical Tech notes

Apart from our core business, medical technology-related
business remained a stable and solid revenue generator to
the Group. In particular, First Oriental Medical Technology
Group Limited registered an approximately 20% business
growth. As to Pacific Medical (Holding) Company Limited
engaging in sales of cardiology and peripheral vascular

related products, a steady business growth was reported.

Amidst social advancements, local people are increasingly
in pursuit of self image enhancements through the aid of
medical technologies in addition to health concerns. In
this response, we initiated a move towards the development
of life-style related healthcare services and products during
the year. Specifically, a hair-planting centre operated in
joint venture with an established US hair-planting centre is
committed to the provision of hair-planting services to
people with hair alopecia problems with the state-of-the-
art American micro-transplanting sciences at reasonably
affordable prices. Those services were extremely well
received, as evidenced from a break-even performance

within a 3-month operation.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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On 9th December, 2005, the Group subscribed convertible
notes of Starbow Holdings Limited (“Starbow”, now renamed
as "Town Health Medical Technology Holdings Company
Limited") at a cost of HK$60 million, being at a conversion
price of HK4.1 cents per share. Upon full exercises, the
notes will be converted into shares representing 55.79%
of the enlarged share capital of TH Medical Tech. Our
investment in body checkup business through the
subscription of those convertible notes represented probably
the most effective use of our financial resources. Proven
records were made by Town Health through such an
investment, as revealed from a closing price of HK11.8

cents of TH Medical Tech as at 31st March, 2006.

Future Prospect

The Group remains optimistic about our business growth
in the next financial year. With a continually conducive
future environment for private medical institutions in the
territory and inherent advantageous strengths of the Group,
we expect to lure strong momentums for a larger market

share in the medical sector.
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Expansion of out-patient business through

identification of acquisition opportunities

To this end, the Group will expand its core out-patient
business by operating clinics at suitable locations in order
to present itself as a leading industry player. Specialist
medical services will at the same time be strengthened in
response to a rising demand for specialist medical services
from all walks of life. A comprehensive dental centre of
the largest scale in the territory covering an area of
approximately 5,000 square feet is expected to be opened
in mid 2006, and a variety of specialist medical centers
will be operated in response to the future market demand.
To foster a more speedy business growth through mergers
and acquisitions, the Group will take an active leap in
attaining an encouraging turnover growth by seeking
acquisition opportunities including other medical groups or

medical related projects.

A centre known as Hong Kong Health Check Centre with
an area of approximately 20,000 square feet will be set up
by TH Medical Tech, the convertible notes of which are
held by the Group, at an investment cost of approximately
$80 million for the provision of one-stop body check-up
and laboratory-test services. Such centre is planned to
commence operation in late 2006. The healthcare centre
is set to receive overwhelming responses from the local
citizens and domestic travelers by taking advantage of its
unique operating mode, an access to a complete range of
equipment and affordable charge rates. The exercise of
the convertible notes by the Group is expected to be a

significant profit contributor to the Group.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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The Group is fully aware of the inflation and salary
increment pressures for different industries and sectors.
Accordingly, a number of cost control initiatives were put
into place to effectively curtail cost and expense increases,
including further enhancement of staff efficiencies and
business operations at self-own properties at prime locations
in order to relieve the ever increasing rental pressures.
Those measures were remarkably effective in the Year, and
will be constantly adopted in the coming year for flourishing

higher efficiencies.

Extending beyond the domestic market to overseas
markets

In addition, the Group made a great step in exploring into
medical service markets outside Hong Kong. The future
domestic medical service market in China will be embedded
with enormous potentials given that the domestic private
hospitals only account for less than 3% of the national
medical market in China since the opening of the medical
market in 2001. To capture this opportunity, the Group
made concerted efforts in seizing each and every
development opportunity in China by setting up a liason
office in Shenzhen and a dedicated team of experienced

medical personnel and related professionals.

Given a consumption growth in medical healthcare markets
associated with a persistently vigorous economic growth in
Macau in recent years, the Group has taken a part in
Macau's medical services. On the side of South-east Asia
and other Asian regions, an increasing demand was
recorded for life-style related healthcare services and
products. It is our vision to extend the brand name of
Town Health into the domestic and foreign medical service
markets through the commencement of life-style related
healthcare businesses including hair-planting centers in Asia
Pacific region in order to extend into a wider horizon of

business scopes.
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Medical healthcare services now form integral parts of our
basic necessities. With a continued vivid demand, we are
confident of our future business prospects. Notwithstanding
our promising results performance, the Group does not
recommend payment of any final dividend as it remains in
a phase of rapid growth and may need extra fund for
acquisitions and business development. Looking ahead, the
Group will seriously consider the payment of dividends to
our shareholders by taking into account of our operating

conditions and profitability.

Acknowledgement

Last but not the least, on behalf of the Board, | would like
to express heartfelt appreciation to our shareholders and
business partners for their continuous support to the Group.
| would also like to take this opportunity to extend sincere

gratitude to our staff.

Cho Kwai Chee

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th June, 2006

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Financial review

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$231,179,000 for the year ended 31st March, 2006
(2005: approximately HK$179,536,000), representing an
increase of 28.8% as compared with the prior year. The
increase was mainly due to the significant improvement in
the performance of the Group's core business — provision

of healthcare and dental services.

Gross profit margin for the year ended 31st March, 2006
was 48.4% (2005: 41.49%).

Other expenses decreased to approximately HK$3,865,000
from approximately HK$53,967,000 registered in prior year.
In prior year, the Group re-assessed the prospect of its
investments in subsidiaries, medical and dental practices
and associated companies and accordingly recognised an
impairment loss of approximately HK$43,303,000. No such
significant impairment was considered necessary for the
current year, resulting in a significant decrease in other

expenses.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31st March, 2006, the Group held cash and bank
balances of approximately HK$126,406,000 (2005:
approximately HK$34,166,000). Net current assets
amounted to approximately HK$159,485,000 (2005:
approximately HK$48,385,000). Current ratio (defined as
total current assets divided by total current liabilities) was

2.92 (2005: 2.40).
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As at 31st March, 2006, the Group had outstanding bank
and other borrowings of approximately HK$62,609,000
(2005: approximately HK$7,116,000). The Group had
variable-rate borrowings on bank loan which carry interest
at prime rate less 2.5% to 3.5%. The range of effective
interest rates (which were also equal to contracted interest

rates) on the Group’s borrowings were as follows:

2006 2005

tEE 2.7EE5.7E 2.45E %3502
2.7% to 5.7% 2.45% to 3.50%

The other loan is unsecured, interest free and repayable

on demand.

Capital structure

As at 31st March, 2006, the Group had equity attributable
to equity holders of the Company of approximately
HK$249,155,000 (2005: approximately HK$123,414,000).

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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On 29th September, 2005, the Group issued convertible
bonds of an aggregate principal amount of HK$40,000,000.
The bonds bear interest at the rate of 2.5% per annum
payable half yearly in arrears. The maturity of the bonds
will be the date immediately following twenty four months
after the date of issue of the bonds (i.e. 29th September
2005). Any unredeemed and unconverted bonds will be
redeemed at 100% of the outstanding principal amount
together with any accrued interest in cash. The bondholders
shall have the right at any time after the date of issue of
the bonds to convert any outstanding amount of the bonds
at the unit of HK$2,000,000 into the shares at the Company
at the conversion price of HK0.105 per share. The Company
shall have the option at its absolute discretion to redeem
the bonds being converted at 105% of the principal amount

of the bonds.

Upon the application of HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosure and Presentation”, the convertible bonds were
split between the liability and equity elements. The equity
element is presented under “convertible bonds equity
reserve” in equity. As at 31st March, 2006, the liability
element of the convertible bonds amounted to

approximately HK$36,692,000.

As at 31st March, 2006, gearing ratio (defined as total
long-term liabilities divided by total shareholders' equity)
of the Group was 26% (2005: 5%).



(ANNUAL REPORT 2006 = & & A & & # | 15

g E B & W #® 4o

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

AEBRSGABETEER /BT  ARBR
EL e HNBTTEETTHEE  ARFRARE
ARKMBEFRBAEBARYE Z M BHEK
BRE BAKBERE  AEEMAXZE
SME LB B IR o

Medical and dental practitioners
Assistant nurses
Management

Sales/Administration/Clerical support/Others

EEAHTO70REFTETIE - HerAET
BRI -

AEBETERENERBEARREEEE
EREFH - REEHMN  NEEITSZ
AEBEZRBAREBETRARBERTERERE
TEIETEAL R A AR -

Major currencies used for the Group's transactions were
Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi and US Dollars. As Hong
Kong Dollars are pegged to the US Dollars and the fiscal
policy of the Central Government of the People’s Republic
of China in relation to Renminbi is stable throughout the
year, the Group considers that the potential foreign

exchange exposure of the Group is limited.

Employee information

A breakdown of the number of staff of the Group by
responsibilities as at 31st March, 2006 and 2005 is set

out below:
2006 2005
PRE N T B 66 42
Bl & 132 111
EEAB 17 11
HE TR XEXEHi 145 53
360 217

Approximately 7% of the total employees are stationed in

the PRC and the remaining are stationed in Hong Kong.

The Group remunerates its employees mainly based on
industry practices and individual's performance and
experience. On top of regular remuneration, discretionary
bonus and share option may be granted to eligible staff by
reference to the Group's performance as well as individual's

performance.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
B o7 B A B 2 A

The Group maintains good relationship with its staff. There
has not been any interruption to its operations as a result
of labour disputes. In addition, the Group provides provident
fund to its employees in accordance with the statutory
requirements of the respective jurisdictions in where the

employees reside.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31st March, 2006, the Group had no significant

contingent liabilities.

Pledge of assets

As at 31st March, 2006, certain property, plant and
equipment and investment properties of the Group with
the carrying value of HK$5,585,000 (2005: HK$9,975,357)
and HK$35,825,000 (2005: nil) respectively and bank
deposits of HK$10,000,000 (2005: HK$10,000,000) were
pledged to secure general bank facilities granted to the

Group.

Capital commitments

As at 31st March, 2006, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements
in respect of the acquisition of property, plant and

equipment of approximately HK$38,600,000 (2005: nil).

Subsequent event

On Tst April, 2006, Town Health Medical Group Limited, a
subsidiary of the Group, entered into an agreement with
Dr. Chow Po Wah whereby the Group committed to acquire
49% of interests in Pak On Medical Company Limited (“Pak
On") at a consideration of HK$2,736,319. Pak On currently

operates six clinics in Hong Kong.
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Change in auditors of the Group
in the preceding three years

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu were first appointed as
auditors of the Company on 13th March, 2003. Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who have been acting as auditors
of the Group since then, will offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of

the Company.

Competing Interests

None of the directors, management shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company (as defined in
the GEM Listing Rules) has an interest in a business which
competes or may complete with the business of the Group

during the year.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee
are to review the Company’s annual report and accounts,
interim reports and quarterly reports and to provide advice
and comments thereon to the board of Directors. The audit
committee will also be responsible for reviewing and
supervising the Group's financial reporting and internal

control procedures.

The audit committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Kam Chiu, Mr. Wai
Kwok Hung JP and Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George. Mr. Chan
Kam Chiu is the chairman of the committee. The committee

has met four times during the year.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
B o7 B A B 2 A

The audit committee has reviewed the Group’s audited

results for the year ended 31st March, 2006.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of
Shares

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company'’s shares.

Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year.
The Company has also made specific enquiry to all Directors
and the Company was not aware of any non-compliance
with the required standard of dealing and its code of

conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors.
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Executive directors

Dr. Cho Kwai Chee, aged 42, is the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company as well as the founder of
the Group. Dr. Cho is also the compliance officer of the
Company. Dr. Cho graduated from the University of Hong
Kong and holds the qualifications of MBBS (HK), FHKCFP,
FRACGP, DCH (London), DCH (RCP&SI) and DCH
(Glasgow). He is also the Permanent President of Hong
Kong Shatin Industries and Commerce Association Limited.
Dr. Cho founded the Group in December 1989 and now is
responsible for directing the Group’s overall business and
development strategies. He is the brother of Mr. Cho Kwai
Yee, Kevin. Dr. Cho is also a director of Broad ldea
International Limited, the substantial shareholder of the

Company.

Ms. Choi Ka Yee, Crystal, aged 25, graduated from
Boston College, the United States of America, with a
bachelor degree of science in accountancy. She joined Early
Light Group in September 2003, which is principally
engaged in the manufacturing and trading of toys and
property investment. She completed her master degree in
corporate finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in Hong Kong in 2006. Ms. Choi has extensive
knowledge in accounting and corporate finance. She joined
the Company in April 2005 as the director of the corporate
finance department. Ms. Choi is also an executive director
of Town Health Medical Technology Holdings Company
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Ms.
Choi was appointed as an executive director and vice-

chairman of the Company on 12th May 2006.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet, aged 39, is the Director of
Medical Services of the Group. He graduated from the
University of Hong Kong and holds the qualifications of
MBBS (HK), MRCGP, DCH (London), DFM (CUHK) and
Dip Med (CUHK). He joined the Group in 1994 and is
responsible for the strategic development of the Group's
medical services and provides training to the medical
practitioners of the Group. Dr. Fung is also an executive
director of Town Health Medical Technology Holdings
Company Limited, the shares of which are listed on the

main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin, aged 44, graduated from
Newcastle Upon Tyne University in UK with a bachelor
degree in 1990. He also holds a Diploma in Management
Studies from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He
has been holding various senior executive positions in a
number of corporations. Mr. Cho was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 24th July, 2001. He
is responsible for the overall development and operations
of the healthcare services of the Group. Mr. Cho is the
brother of Dr. Cho Kwai Chee. Mr. Cho is also a director of
Broad Idea International Limited, the substantial shareholder
of the Company and executive director of Town Health
Medical Technology Holdings Company Limited, the shares

of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.



(ANNUAL REPORT 2006 =2 Z X F F |

21

E £ X B8 #H & #BH =B

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & SENIOR MANAGEMENT

FHITES

BEABLATEHLT  RES+TR FAE
B Newport University T 7% & ¥ 18 - 247 Jr
Bl Sussex College of Technology T & 12 &
T2 WETERRELEAZETIRERE
T2  BELTRBERBEEEEGRATZ
ITE - RBEXEREHWEFERBRZER
B -RREBEMARAGHEEEETFIE
EHhEHEBEGREBEBEIRNERE - It
Hh - BE LA EARAMNME 2 EHRIHZE
ERAERBEREZERAR AR (KRHKH K
S0 78 HIRM BRI ER L) 2 IEH
TEEHRBER - BELR_ZETRF_A
T REZERARRIZIERNITESRE T
o

Non-executive director

Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming, J.P., aged 60, holds a
master degree in business administration from Newport
University in the United States of America and a bachelor
degree in business administration from Sussex College of
Technology in the United Kingdom. He also holds a Ph.D
in Business Management from Harbin Institute of
Technology, the PRC. Dr. Choi is the chairman of Early
Light International (Holdings) Ltd. and has extensive
business interests in the manufacturing industry and the
property sector. He is the Honorary President of the Toys
Manufacturer's Association of Hong Kong, Honorary
President of the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council
and Council Member of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Dr. Choi is also a member of the National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and a non-executive director and vice chairman
of Regal Hotels International Holdings Limited (stock code:
78), the shares of which are listed on the main board of
Stock Exchange. Dr. Choi was appointed as a non-executive
director and vice-chairman of the Company on 7th February

2006.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. Chan Kam Chiu, aged 53, has engaged in the catering
industry for almost 30 years. He has also involved in
entertainment, property and investment project in the recent
years. Mr. Chan is the President (founding chairman) of
Hong Kong Shatin Industries & Commerce Association
Limited and currently an executive member of the
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Qingxin County, Guangdong Province and
member of the Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Guangzhou Li Wan. He is also
an honorary president and director of Shatin Sports
Association Limited since 1992 and the chairman of the
Shatin District Junior Police Call since 1996. He was
awarded the “Chief Executive's Commendation for
Community Service” since July 2004. Mr. Chan was
appointed as an Independent non-executive Director and
the chairman of the audit committee of the Company both

on 30th July 2002.

Mr. Wai Kwok Hung, J.P., aged 52, is the chairman of
the Shatin District Council. Mr. Wai is a councillor of the
Shatin District Council since 1988. He was also the
chairman of the Culture, Sports and Community
Development Committee of the Shatin Provisional District
Board for the period form 1998 to 1999. He is currently a
vice-president of Shatin Sports Association Limited, a
manager of the board of PLK Dr. Jimmy Wong Chi-Ho (Tin
Sum Valley) Primary School and Management Committee
Member of Helen Liang Memorial Secondary School. Mr.
Wai was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director and a member of the audit committee of the

Company both on 30th July, 2002.
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Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George, aged 48, is a practicing
certified public accountant in Hong Kong. He is the
proprietor of George K. W. Ho & Co., Certified Public
Accountants and possesses over 20 years' professional
experience in accounting, auditing, tax planning and
business advisory. Mr. Ho is also a director of The Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Commerce and
Industry Associations Limited. Mr. Ho was an independent
non-executive director of Asia Resources Holdings Limited
and MAXX Biosciences Holdings Limited before his
resignation as director of the respective company on 11th
April 2002 and 31st December 2003. Mr. Ho was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director and a member
of the audit committee of the Company both on 28th
September 2004.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Mak Yau Hing, aged 37, is the financial controller,
the company secretary and the qualified accountant of the
Company who is responsible for the financial and
accounting management and secretarial affairs of the Group.
Mr. Mak graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy
and from The Open University of Hong Kong with a master
degree in corporate governance. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an
associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered

Secretaries. Mr. Mak joined the Group in July 1999.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A

W



24 | ANNUAL REPORT 2006 = & % 5 & Eiﬁ)

t % B & ® &

=

=]

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERER
ARABNBHBRENLEER - WRF
WREE - BE-FTAE=A=+—AL
R ARARBTAIER EHRAINE5
LB £ 3B 0A BRI BV SUR R
AT RS

FRIRICEA2.11E

BEFAARE - EFRITHRABNBEET S
M- TEBER—-—ALET BE_TT F
ZA=+—BLLFE BETFTEA([EEH
EDEERRRERRITBEY  BEERE

EFerEBEEXB -EFZERR - BBAE
HEEXARABXNAREBRG Tt

SEEERGERZ  -EZGNAA - WRE
BHEEFSNARAERE ZHHE S ME
BYE - -BBEFANEBREEFENENZ
B RERTHEIMBEN TS MEEEK

EHRANTEARAEENET - N
ZRE=ZRA=+—H EFFLEBKETF
BEZZRBIUIFNITES - LAEANE T

i
u}]{ mE}

A

REFENITHEEBENE NS BRERS
EBUEMELE - BENL  EFTeHES
EHEFeNBE  URHEHETEEENH

o RBRSHERRTHARABEHLE
HERS 2 -

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
B o7 B A B 2 A

Corporate governance practices

The Company endeavors in maintaining high standard of
corporate governance for the enhancement of shareholders’
value. The Company has complied with the required code
provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules for the year ended 31st March, 2006, except for the

following deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1

This code stipulates that the role of Chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During the year ended
31st March, 2006, Dr. Cho Kwai Chee (“Dr. Cho") is the
Chairman and chief executive officer of the Company who
is responsible for managing the Board and the Group's
businesses. The Board considers that Dr. Cho's in-depth
professional knowledge of and extensive network in the
healthcare industry will definitely bring invaluable input to
the Board. The Board also considers that this structure will
not impair the balance of power and authority between
the Board and the management of the Company. The
balance of power and authority is ensured by the
participation of experienced and high caliber members of
the Board which meets regularly to discuss issues affecting
operations of the Company. As at 31st March, 2006, three
out of the seven members of the Board were independent
non-executive Directors. Such composition further ensures
objectivity and independence of the Board as a whole
when exercising its functions and powers. Nevertheless,
the Board will continually review the function of the Board
and its relationship with the management, especially the
necessity and the benefits of separating the roles of the

chairman and chief executive officer.
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Corporate governance practices
(Continued)

Code Provision A.4

This code stipulates that all directors should be subject to
re-election at regular intervals. The present Articles of
Association of the Company do not provide for retirement
by rotation of a director holding office as managing director
or joint managing director. Proposed amendments to the
Articles of Association of the Company will be put forward
to the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting in order to comply with the Code

on Corporate Governance practices.

Code Provision A.4.2

This code stipulates that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their
appointment. The present Articles of Association of the
Company only requires such directors who are appointed
to fill a casual vacancy to be re-elected at the next annual
general meeting. Proposed amendments to the Articles of
Association of the Company will be put forward to the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting in order to comply with the Code on

Corporate Governance practices.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Corporate governance practices
(Continued)

Code Provision A.4.4

This code stipulates that listed issuers should establish a
nomination committee with specific written terms of
reference. The nomination committee should, among others,
(i) reviews the structure, size and composition of the board
and make recommendations to the board regarding any
proposed changes; (i) identify individuals suitably qualified
to become board members; (iii) assess the independence
of independent non-executive directors; and (iv) make
recommendations to the board on matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession

planning for directors.

The Company has not established a nomination committee.
Instead, the full Board is involved in the appointment of
new Directors. The Board will take into consideration criteria
such as expertise, experience, integrity and commitment
when considering new Director appointment. The Board
will conduct in-depth assessment on the independence of

candidates for post of independent Directors.

Code Provision B.1.1

This code stipulates that listed issuers should establish a
remuneration committee with specific written terms of
reference. The Company established its remuneration
committee on 14th February, 2006 which comprises three
independent non-executive Directors and one executive

Director.
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Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year.
The Company has also made specific enquiry to all Directors
and the Company was not aware of any non-compliance
with the required standard of dealing and its code of

conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors.

Board of directors

The Board is responsible for determining the overall strategy;
reviewing and approving the work plan of the Group; and
overseeing the corporate governance of the Group. While
the management of the Company is responsible for
proposing and implementing the work plan of the Group,
executing the day-to-day operation of the Group and
undertaking any further responsibility as delegated by the

Board from time to time.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Board of directors (Continued)

The Board comprises three executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. A new non-executive
Director was appointed on 7th February, 2006. The

Company held four full Board meeting during the year

B o UWTEHINEESENX  EREEEM  ended 31st March, 2006. The following shows the
NEEENHFE L composition of the Board, name of individual Director and
record of attendance of each Director:
ESEHREETR BHEEZ
EZE88 Y eRRE
Number of board
meeting held during  Number of meeting
ES4M Name of Director the Director's term of office attended’
HITES Executive Directors
EETE Dr. Cho Kwai Chee 4 4
(EEFRITHEH) (Chairman and CFO)

EEE LA Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin? 4 4
BRREE Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Benent 4
FHTES Non-executive Director
ESHBLATEL Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming ip 1 1

(BIFR) (RZFEREF (Vice-chairman) (Appointed

ZAtHEZE) on 7th February, 2006)

BYFBTES Independent non-executive Directors

Bedlxa Mr. Chan Kam Chiu 4
BEMATHL Mr. Wai Kwok Hung Jp 4 4
oy B 5 & Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George 4 4
! PHEESAREFERGHFEONER 1 It includes the meeting attended by the director via telephone

: BEEHAERARAE

BLENRL

EFRAT

BEEHESET

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited

B B OB B

K &

R 2 &

conference
2 Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin is the brother of Dr. Cho Kwai
Chee, the Chairman and CEO of the Company
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Term of appointment of non-
executive directors

Mr. Chan Kam Chiu and Mr. Wai Kwok Hung JP have been
appointed for a term of two years expiring on 29th July,
2006, and Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George has been appointed
for a term of two years expiring on 27th September, 2006.
Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming JP does not have a service
contract with the Company nor will he receive any
remuneration from acting as a non-executive director. These
appointments are subject to retirement by rotation and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Articles of

Association of the Company.

Remuneration of directors

The remuneration committee was established on 14th
February, 2006 with specific written terms of reference.
The committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on policy and structure for
all remuneration of directors and senior management and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing policy on such remuneration. The committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wai Kwok Hung JP (Chairman), Mr. Chan Kam
Chiu and Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, Geroge, and one executive
Director, Dr. Cho Kwai Chee. The committee has not

convened any meeting up to 31st March, 2006.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Auditors’ remuneration

The auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, provide both
statutory audit and non-audit services to the Group. For
the year ended 31st March, 2006, fee for statutory audit
for the Group amounts to HK$2,180,000. Non-audit services
include tax compliance and planning, agreed upon
procedures on review of financial statements and
transactions, etc. Total fee paid for non-audit services during

the year ended 31st March, 2006 was HK$548,000.

Audit committee

The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28
to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of
the audit committee are to review the Company’'s annual
report and accounts, interim reports and quarterly reports
and to provide advice and comments thereon to the board
of Directors. The audit committee will also be responsible
for reviewing and supervising the Group's financial reporting

and internal control procedures.

The audit committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kam Chiu (Chairman),
Mr. Wai Kwok Hung JP and Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George. The
committee convened four meetings with full attendance
during the year ended 31st March, 2006. One of these
meetings was also attended by the Company’s external
auditors so that the committee members could exchange
their views and concerns with the auditors. During these
meetings, the committee reviewed the annual, interim and
quarterly results of the Group and made recommendations
to the Board and the management in respect of the Group's

financial reporting and internal control procedures.
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Directors’ responsibility for
financial statements

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring
such accounts give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for
that period. The Company's accounts are prepared in
accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors are
responsible for ensuring the appropriate accounting policies

are selected and applied consistently; and that judgements

and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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The directors of the Company present their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the

year ended 31st March, 2006.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set
out in notes 52 and 22 respectively to the consolidated

financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March,
2006 are set out in the consolidated income statement on

page 48 of the annual report.

An interim dividend of HK$0.002 per share amounting to
HK$9,993,188 was paid to the shareholders during the

year.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the year, the Group acquired investment properties
at a cost of HK$29,814,100 and revalued all of its
investment properties at the year end date. The net increase
in fair value of investment properties, which has been
credited to the consolidated income statement, amounted
to HK$3,781,630.

Details of movements in the investment properties are set

out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$7,706,000 for the

expansion of the Group's business.

Details of these and other movements in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set

out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

During the year, the Group acquired 49% interest in F&T
Company Limited at a consideration of HK$1,029,000. F&T
Company Limited is a company incorporated in Hong Kong
and is principally engaged in the provision of medical

services.

The Group acquired 49% interest in Goldwell Investment
Holdings Limited at a consideration of HK$4,915,813.
Goldwell Investment Holdings Limited is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong and is principally engaged in

the provision of medical services.

The Group acquired a further 33.33% interest in Silver
Ascot Limited at a consideration of HK$200,000. Silver
Ascot engaged in the operation of a medical clinic in Hong

Kong and is previously treated as an associate of the Group.

The Group acquired a further 36% interest in Pherson
Limited at a consideration of HK$990,000. Pherson Limited
is a company incorporated in Hong Kong and is principally
engaged in property holding. Dr. Cho Kwai Chee, the
executive director of the Company, has beneficial interest
in Pherson Limited. After the said acquisition, the Group

holds a total of 69% interest in Pherson Limited.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and
associates at 31st March, 2006 are set in notes 52 and 22

to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

CONVERTIBLE BOND

On 11th April, 2005, the Company placed HK$32,000,000
of 2.5% convertible bonds repayable in 2007, to
independent third parties. The convertible bonds were fully
converted during the year at a conversion price of HK$0.037
per share. A total of 864,864,864 shares were allotted

and issued during the year.

On 30th August, 2005, the Company entered into another
placing agreement with an independent placing agent for
the purpose of arranging subscribers for the issue of 2.5%
convertible bonds repayable in 2007 and 2008, on a best
effort basis, up to an aggregate principal amount of
HK$80,000,000 in two tranches. As at 31st March 2006,
“Tranche 1 Bonds”, representing 2.5% convertible bonds
repayable in 2007 up to an aggregate principal amount of
HK$40,000,000 had been issued in full. No subscribers
have been procured to subscribe for the Trache 2 Bonds
(representing 2.5% convertible bonds due 2008 up to an
aggregate principal amount of HK$40,000,000) up to 28th
February, 2006. According to the placing agreement, the
placing for Tranche 2 Bonds was ceased and terminated

and thus the whole Tranche 2 Bonds were not issued.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 40 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF SHARES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company's shares.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company's reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31st March, 2006 comprised the share
premium, continued surplus, distributable reserve and
accumulated losses which in aggregate amounts to
HK$168,001,013 (2005: HK$104,054,311). Under the
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company is available for paying distributions
or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of
its Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided
that immediately following the payment of distributions or
dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. In accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association, dividends shall be
payable out of the profits or other reserves, including the

share premium account, of the Company.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company's share option schemes are set

out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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BEEREBEECREEYN DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’

SERVICE CONTRACTS

FAREEARERHZAQRAESWT © The directors of the Company during the year and up to

the date of this report were:

HITES Executive directors:
BEEFEA Dr. Cho Kwai Chee
EEHLE Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin
HEEE A Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet
e+ Ms. Choi Ka Yee, Crystal
(RZZTZERFRATZHEZMT) (appointed on 12th May, 2006)
FHITES Non-executive director:
BERBTATHLT Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming, JP

(RZZEZTRF_AtHEZT)

BYFBTES :
Re 8 kL
BEARFHLT
] B 22 5k A&

(appointed on 7th February, 2006)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Chan Kam Chiu
Mr. Wai Kwok Hung, JP
Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George

REBARBZ ARMABERMAEF - £
SHELAFEERENME L TR EER
RBFAG LRI EHAERLMEBEE
EAE o

In accordance with Article 99 of the Company's Articles of
Association, Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming, JP and Ms. Choi
Ka Yee, Crystal will retire from office at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves

for re-election.

REBEARB 2 ARABERMAAE 11605 -
EESA AN EERRBFRAE LR
T ENEERAREBRET -

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company's Articles
of Association, Mr. Wai Kwok Hung, JP will retire from
office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting

and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
h ;Eii jied o7 B A B 2 A
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’
SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

Mr. Chan Kam Chiu and Mr. Wai Kwok Hung, JP have been
appointed for a term of two years expiring on 29th July,
2006, and Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George has been appointed
for a term of two years expiring on 27th September, 2006.
The appointments are subject to retirement by rotation
and other related provisions as stipulated in the Articles of

Association of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market
(the “"GEM Listing Rules") of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors

are independent.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Name of director Capacity

BEETEL

Dr. Cho Kwai Chee

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

At 31st March, 2006, the interests of the directors and the
chief executives and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares and convertible bonds of the Company
and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ"), or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"), were

as follows:

The Company
Long position in ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

e #&1T EERARE BT
EEREE RAERB D

Percentage
Number of of the issued

issued ordinary share capital

shares held of the Company

HXEEERFE (Fi2)
Held by controlled

corporation (note)

BEHBLATHL
Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming, 1P

HXEEERFE (Hi)
Held by controlled

corporation (note)

ISR
Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
B o7 B A B 2 A

EDmEAA

Beneficial owner

2,615,027,451 52.34%
2,615,027,451 52.34%
2,689,090 0.05%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Note: These 2,615,027,451 shares are owned by Broad Idea
International Limited. Dr. Cho Kwai Chee and Dr. Francis
Choi Chee Ming, JP are deemed to be interested in the
2,615,027,451 shares owned by Broad Idea International
Limited under Part XV of the SFO given that they are
beneficially interested in 50.1% and 49.9% of the issued
share capital of Broad Idea International Limited

respectively.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors, the
chief executives of the Company, nor their associates had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or convertible bonds of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31st March, 2006 as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
sections 352 of the SFO.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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FERR SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

RZTEZTRE=ZA=+—8 AR AIRIE  As at 31st March, 2006, the register of substantial
BHELHEKAEIZ6KMTEFTEZEER/  shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
BELMETR BEXHAEESTEENRE  Section 336 of the SFO shows that other than the interests
BTHRABZBEEN  LWTREBAMEAZR  disclosed above in respect of certain directors and chief
BIENRAKRARR MA@ GD 2 B@#EZEK  executives, the following shareholder had notified the

KB o Company of relevant interests or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company.

REREEC0IETZ BEBRZIFE Long position in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
e #81T HARRABE BT
REERB g2 ZTER#E REBDL
Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued ordinary share capital
Name of shareholders Capacity shares held of the Company
Broad Idea International BExnEa AN (Kit) 2,615,027,451 52.34%

Limited Beneficial Owner (Note)

BEXHBEEIN RZZZTXFEZA=+—  Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been

H  AARUTEEZREMATERRFE

TRARHFEFEMEAMBEERIORE - the issued share capital of the Company as at 31st March,
2006.

#  notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
h ;Eii jied o7 B A B 2 A
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st March, 2006, the percentage of
turnover attributable to the Group's five largest customers
is less than 30% of the Group's total turnovers. The five
largest suppliers of the Group and the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 61% and 439% of the Group's

total purchases respectively.

Other than the aforementioned, at no time during the year,
none of the directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the knowledge of the directors, own more than
5% of the Company's share capital) had a beneficial interest
in anyone of the Group's top five suppliers during the

years.

COMPETING INTERESTS

Save as disclosed in the section “Major Customers and
Suppliers”, none of the directors, management shareholders
or controlling shareholders of the Company (as defined in
the GEM Listing Rules) has an interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group

during the year.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section of “Share Options”
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities including

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 13th September, 2004, the Group entered into a master
agreement with Kowloon Hearing Services Limited, in
relation to the purchase of certain hearing-aid products.
For the year ended 31st March, 2006, the Group paid
approximately HK$1,924,282 to Kowloon Hearing Services
Limited.

The transaction is regarded as continuing connected
transactions pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules. Particulars
of this transaction is disclosed in note 49 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
confirmed that the above transactions had been conducted
in ordinary and usual course of business of the Company,
on normal commercial terms or terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties, and in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the

Company as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

On 31st March, 2006, the Group acquired a further of
369% equity interest in Pherson Limited, a company in
which Dr. Cho Kwai Chee has a beneficial interest, at a
cash consideration of HK$990,000. The details of the
transaction are set out in note 49 to the consolidated

financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Connected
transactions”, no contracts of significance to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its fellow
subsidiaries and subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly and indirectly, subsisted at the end of the period

or at any time during the period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out on pages 24 to 31 of

the annual report.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors of the Company on terms
no less exacting than the required standard of dealings as
set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
throughout the year. The Company has also made specific
enquiry to all directors of the Company and the Company
was not aware of any non-compliance with the required
standard of dealing and its code of conduct regarding

securities transactions by the directors of the Company.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
set up by the Board of Directors on the basis of their

merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
decided by the Board of Directors, having regard to the
Company's operating results, individual performance and

comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of
the scheme is set out in note 41 to the consolidated

financial statements.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of a significant event occurring after the balance
sheet date are set out in note 50 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chairman

Cho Kwai Chee

Hong Kong, 28th June, 2006

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY
LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Town Health International Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) on pages
48 to 172 which have been prepared in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of
directors and auditors

The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements which give a true and
fair view. In preparing consolidated financial statements
which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied

consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion,
based on our audit, on those consolidated financial
statements and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.
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Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgements made by the directors in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements, and
of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Group, consistently applied and

adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all
the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence
to give reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
In forming our opinions, we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the
consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audit

provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinions, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs and the Group as
at 31st March, 2006 and of the profit and cash flows of
the Group for the year then ended and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28th June, 2006

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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2006 2005
Bt 5 B TT BT
Notes HKS$ HK$
(restated)
(feE5)
e Turnover 7 231,179,362 179,535,937
5 & A AR Cost of sales (119,340,223) (105,199,024)
E7 Gross profit 111,839,139 74,336,913
HA g A Other income 8 9,846,782 2,797,479
TR X Administrative expenses (90,987,300) (106,133,466)
H b2 Other expenses 9 (3,865,435) (53,967,286)
&l & B AR Finance costs 10 (2,399,910) (787,564)
HomE—FKEB AR Gain on partial disposal
2 Was of a subsidiary - 33,056
HERBERE QT Gain on dilution and
2 W s disposal of associates 11 - 5,104,790
AR E R R EE Share of results of associates (475,284) 707,028
REYERTFEE N Increase in fair value of
investment properties 3,781,630 -
B % A& A (B 18) Profit (loss) before taxation 27,739,622 (77,909,050)
IR Taxation 14 (6,291,163) (471,573)
FERF (EE) Profit (loss) for the year 15 21,448,459 (78,380,623)
fEfh - Attributable to:
RATREREA Equity holders of the Company 20,030,499 (84,330,685)
LR RS Minority interests 1,417,960 5,950,062
21,448,459  (78,380,623)
s\ Dividends 9,993,188 -

FEran (ER)
—H& K

Earnings (loss) per share

— Basic 17 0.44 flicents  (6.36 {licents)

—#E — diluted N/A N/A

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
E ;E‘é jied o7 B A B 2 A
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Goodwill
Interests in associates
Investments in securities
Available-for-sale investments
Deposit paid on acquisition

of property, plant and equipment

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Prepaid lease payments

Amounts due from associates

Amounts due from investees

Amounts due from related parties

Amounts due from minority
shareholders of subsidiaries

Amounts due from a director

Tax recoverable

Investments held for trading

Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to minority
shareholders of subsidiaries
Bank and other borrowings
— due within one year
Tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

B &

Notes

18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

26
27
20
28
29
30

31
32

33

34
35

36

31

37

RZTZXF=HA=+—HF At 31st March, 2006

2006 2005

BT BT

HK$ HK$
35,825,000 -
16,223,250 15,166,608
9,750,235 10,420,096
50,963,605 44,184,246
21,205,522 20,941,979
- 3,657,952

3,657,952 -
17,206,909 -
154,832,473 94,370,881
13,782,789 8,783,991
49,560,143 27,103,400
242,727 253,171
13,047,359 3,266,147
683,350 865,702
4,495,365 7,343,405
9,362,196 -
950,000 -
1,215,084 1,135,383
22,929,500 -
10,000,000 10,000,000
116,406,424 24,165,816
242,674,937 82,917,015
38,909,353 33,271,703
4,737,290 657,820
37,487,642 602,039
2,056,083 -
83,190,368 34,531,562
159,484,569 48,385,453
314,317,042 142,756,334

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

RZZZTRF=A=+—H At 31st March, 2006

2006 2005
B & B JT AT
Notes HKS$ HK$
kRBAE Non-current liabilities
EERIE A E Deferred tax liabilities 38 3,998,342 859,120
RITRHEMBEE Bank and other borrowings
——F1& 55 — due after one year 37 25,120,982 6,513,984
AR E 5 Convertible bonds 39 36,692,212 -
65,811,536 7,373,104
248,505,506 135,383,230
BEXRHE Capital and reserves
& A Share capital 40 49,965,935 17,467,966
@ Reserves 199,189,296 105,946,243
RAGIREREA Equity attributable to equity holders
FEAE R = of the Company 249,155,231 123,414,209
DR R R Minority interests (649,725) 11,969,021
Ly Total equity 248,505,506 135,383,230

FABR 1 RE U BERREHEETGNRN _Z
ERENA-TN\BIEREERZETHT
WATKREEEESHE

The financial statements on pages 48 to 172 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28th
June, 2006 and are signed on its behalf by:

BET BRE
Cho Kwai Chee Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet
EF 4
Director Director

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
U B o7 B A B 2 A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HEZZZXF=A=1—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

KDARREEARE
Attrbutable to equty holders of the Company
TREEE Er 0
ke RBEE  RARE ERaE it EiRE  ENER 85 hREE Ll
Convertble
bonds
Share Shae  equty  Capital Distributable Translation ~Accumulated Minority

aptll - premium  reseve  resemve  reseve  resemve  losses Total  interests Total

AT 30 3y 37 1 1 1 i 1 i

Hg Hi§ HE HiS HS HS H Hs H
(i (i)

(Nore) — (Notei)

At st Aprl, 2004 12491820 135194478 - 1003282 TET05 - (40547708) 189841657 398730 193710367
Los forthe year, epesening ot

recogied ncome ¢ expense

frfe e - - - - - S (BeI0EE) (I0GE) 5006 (183060
Partiel disposal o & subsidary - - - - - - - - 12,103 12103
Iste of new shares 4976146 1402384 - - - - - 19000000 - 19000000
Shere ssue expenses - (10%763) - - - - - (10%763) - (10%763)
Acqusiton ofsubsdris - - - - - - - - 300 23037
Didends paid to minorty

sherefoldrs of subsidies - - - - - - - - () (s00)
31t Mrh, 2005 746960 148121569 -8 e - (4B IBAANS TR0 1B
Buchange ifetence aing on franseion

of foreign opereions recognied

direct m equity - - - - - 0 - I Ml 3%
Rt e e - - - - - SN0 MBS AT 2148459
Totlrecognised income &nd experse

for the year - - - - - 034 0000499 2020865 1590191 21,847,004
It of e s T8930 64393166 - - - - - 8824046 - 8824046
She st expenses - (4988 - - - - - (49882) - (49882)
Ceptal contbuted by

minoty shereholdes - - - - - - - -
Acquistion of subsidans (ate i) - - - - - - - - (1454790 (12.454790)
Recagnifon of equiy component of

convertble bonds - - 30099 - - - -39 - 3%
st of shares pon comersion of

comverble bonds 8668649 21301043 (342.9%6) - - - - 25006726 - 15006726
Diidend paid to minory shareholdrs - - - - - - - - (1981.83)  (1981.853)
Dndends i - - - - - - (b8 - (b8
At 31st March, 2006 1996595 10846954 2259995 10032820  GDETI0ST 0364 (1048478%4) Q15231 (64975) 248505506

Bzt - Notes:

0] AEBRZBRAREEDIEAATDRETEBR () Capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between
2 M {350,000/ 7T 82 Town Health (BVI) the nominal value of HK$350,000 of the ordinary share issued
Limited BEN —ZZZF 0 AT RESE by the Company and the nominal value of the share capital
HEBERBRHBBZINELR) 2 RAEE of approximately HK$10,382,822 of Town Health (BVI) Limited,
#910,382,822B L 2 =/ ° a subsidiary acquired through an exchange of shares pursuant

to the group reorganisation in April 2000.

(i AEEBZAHSRFEEDERRNEBRAMESE (i) The distributable reserve of the Group represents the amount
2RI e arising from the reduction of share capital.

(D) ZEHEEEAEEBEEEGHENE275% (i) Included in the amount represents net liabilities of Town Health
[GFeRERBIMBHRE] ([FEGER Medical Technology Holdings Company Limited (formerly
F275%]) BEEBERRZERAER AR (AIE known as Starbow Holdings Limited) (“THMT") at the date on
EIERARDT) ([RIEBEMR]) 2 %48 which the Group included the results of THMT into its
FAT ARSI B R H e BB RHY consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
ZBEFE  HBHNREMBmMRME2 - Kong Accounting Standard 27 “Consolidated and Separate

Financial Statements” ("HKAS 27"), detail of which are set
out in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
E@@E?@Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁu
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HE-ZTTRF=F=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit (loss) before taxation
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Dividend income from listed
investments
Amortisation of goodwill arising on
acquisitions of subsidiaries, medical
and dental practices and associates
Impairment loss in respect of:
— goodwill arising on acquisition
of associates
— amount due from investee
— goodwill arising on acquisitions of
subsidiaries, medical and
dental practices
Depreciation and amortisation of property,
plant and equipment
Increase in fair value on investment
held for trading
Allowance for inventories, net
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts, net
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of unlisted investments
in securities
Gain on disposal of listed securities
Release of prepaid lease payments

Increase in fair value of investment properties

Share of result of associates

Finance costs

Gain on dilution and disposal of associates
Gain on partial disposal of a subsidiary
Allowance for amounts due from associates

Operating cash inflow before
working capital changes
(Increase) decrease in inventories
Increase in trade and
other receivables
Decrease (increase) in amounts
due from related parties
Increase in trade and
other payables
Increase in amount due from a director

Cash inflow from operating activities
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited

B B OB B

K &

R 2 &

2006 2005

BT BT

HK$ HK$
27,739,622 (77,909,050)
(2,281,435) (60,483)
(2,700,265) (140,884)
- 16,594,158
3,327,080 24,066,490
538,355 -

- 19,236,861
6,134,030 18,554,871
(a44,076) -
457,178 1,550,335
138,654 2,157,545
73,639 117937
= (2,400)
(92,575) (868,314)
169,616 186,771
(3,781,630) -
475,284 (707,028)
2,399,910 787,564
- (5,104,790)
= (33,056)

- 1,898,658
32,153,387 325,185
(5,098,710) 1,245,554
(21,893,068) (2,569,716)
2,848,040 (4,134,256)
781,121 10,014,385
(950,000) -
7,840,770 4,881,152
(1,831,187) (873,780)
6,009,583 4,007,372
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HEZZZXF=A=1—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

2006 2005
B 55 BT AT
Notes HK$ HK$
REZED INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BARIELERE Purchase of investment held for trading (141,061,160) (26,450,622)
R EYE Acquisition of investment properties 18 (25,814,100) -
RBENE  BE Deposit paid on acquisition of property,
FHEEHES plant and equipment (17,206,909) -
WEFRERIFEDA  Acquisition of medical and dental
practices 43 (11,380,000) -
FE UGS & A AT AN Increase in amounts due from associates (9,781,212) (262,181)
Y g % *B¥E§li Purchase of property, plant and
H 1 equipment (7.166,414) (8,102,676)
gt NG Purchase of interests in associates (6,344,917) (6,565,410)
JEU— R E A7 Increase in amount due from
FIELE an investee (356,003) (189,842)
HERELERE Proceeds from disposal of
Fri8E investment held for trading 134,838,311 27,318,936
s B8 Bt /& A A Acquisition of subsidiaries 42 9,185,152 (24,539,570)
B EmIREER Dividend received from listed
1% & investments 2,700,265 140,884
B F S Interest received 2,281,435 60,483
B U Bt & A & Dividend received from associates 1,046,350 899,016
HEME - f%& Proceeds from disposal of property,
JEFEHE plant and equipment 785,873 206,009
HERTEE Proceeds from disposal of
P15 AR intangible assets - 1,800,000
HEBE QB MEHE  Proceeds from disposal of associates - 250,001
B p HENB QA Proceeds from partial disposal
BT {5 %8 of a subsidiary - 33,056
HEFLTELEE Proceeds from disposal of unlisted
FT18 5k 3E investments in securities - 26,400
BEFEEWENRE Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries
RAZ R in prior year - (13,335,878)
REEDHER NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ZBREFE ACTIVITIES (68,273,329) (48,711,394)

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HE-ZTTRF=F=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

MEEH
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BBETARRES
BERNZHAX
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(BE) 2N THELRAF
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EANEIYS,

METHEL RS TR

RERkREEEEE
12 o (s 2)

EXgyo¥E

ENZRERAE
ZEEH

FRZBAERAE
FEERH

RERRALEEER
BER 2D
RITEBLASE
RITEX

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of shares

Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds

New borrowings raised

Capital contributed by minority shareholders
of subsidiaries

Dividend paid to shareholders

Expenses paid in connection with
the issue of shares

Expenses paid in connection with
the issue of convertible bonds

Repayment of borrowings

Dividend paid to minority shareholders
of subsidiaries

(Repayment of) advance from minority
shareholders of subsidiaries

Interest paid

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES
OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash
Bank overdraft

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited

B B OB B

K &

R 2 &

2006 2005
BT BT

HKS HK$
88,242,486 -
72,000,000 19,000,000
21,450,000 16,412,735
227,707 -
(9,993,188) -
(4,968,824) (1,096,763)
(4,875,170) -
(4,606,110) (9,296,712)
(1,981,853) (225,050)
(1,553,626) (2,144,802)
(622,843) (787,564)
153,318,579 21,861,844
91,054,833 (22,842,178)
392,595 -
24,165,816 47,007,994
115,613,244 24,165,816
116,406,424 24,165,816
(793,180) -
115,613,244 24,165,816
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM Board") of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). lIts
ultimate holding company is Broad Idea International

Limited incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in

the corporation information to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the

functional currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries and

associates are set out in note 52 and 22 respectively.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Pursuant to a conditional subscription agreement
on 9th December 2005 entered into between THMT
and Top Act Group Limited (“Top Act"), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, on 23rd February,
2006, Top Act subscribed for convertible bonds of
an aggregate principal amount of HK$60,000,000
("CN Subscription Agreement”) issued by THMT.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A

55

W



56 | ANNUAL REPORT 2006 = & %

W

= &

B Ww =

Bt

&t

=]
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZTTRF=F=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
(Continued)

The bonds are convertible into 1,463,414,634 shares
at a conversion price of HK$0.041. Upon conversion
of the bonds, the Group will acquire 55.79% of
ownership interest and as a consequence voting
rights in THMT. As at the balance sheet date the
Group had the ability to exercise control over the
financial and operating policies of THMT as the
bonds were currently convertible. Accordingly THMT

has been consolidated as a subsidiary of the Group.

APPLICATION OF NEW HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the
first time, a number of new Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"s), Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS"s) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “new HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA") that are effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2005. The application of the new HKFRSs has
resulted in a change in the presentation of the
consolidated income statement, consolidated balance
sheet and consolidated statement of changes in
equity. In particular, the presentation of minority
interests and share of tax of associates, have been
changed. The changes in presentation have been
applied retrospectively. The adoption of the new
HKFRSs has resulted in changes to the Group's
accounting policies in the following areas that have
an effect on how the results for the current and

prior accounting years are prepared and presented:
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

APPLICATION OF NEW HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Business Combinations

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 3
"Business Combinations” ("HKFRS 3") which is
effective for business combination for which the
agreement date is on or after 1st January, 2005
and for goodwill and negative goodwill existed on
or before 1st January, 2005. The principal effects of
the application of transitional provision of HKFRS 3

to the Group are summarised below:

Goodwill

In previous years, goodwill arising on acquisition
was capitalised and amortised over its estimated
useful life. The Group has applied the relevant
transitional provisions in HKFRS 3. With respect to
goodwill arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries
presented separately in the balance sheet and
goodwill arising on acquisitions of associates included
within the carrying amount of the associates. The
Group on 1st April, 2005 eliminated the carrying
amount of the related accumulated amortisation with
a corresponding decrease in the cost of goodwill
(see Notes 21 and 22). The Group has discontinued
amortising such goodwill from 1st April, 2005
onwards and such goodwill will be tested for
impairment at least annually. Goodwill arising on
acquisition after 1st January, 2005 is measured at
cost less accumulated impairment losses (if any)
after initial recognition. As a result of this change in
accounting policy, no amortisation of goodwill has
been charged in the current year. Comparative figures
for 2005 have not been restated (see Note 3A for

the financial impact).

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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HE-ZTTRF=F=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006
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APPLICATION OF NEW HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Financial instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation
("HKAS 32") and HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement ("HKAS 39"). HKAS
32 requires retrospective application. HKAS 39,
which is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1st January, 2005, generally does not permit
the recognition, derecognition or measurement of
financial assets and liabilities on a retrospective basis.
The principal effects resulting from the
implementation of HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 are

summarised below:

Convertible bonds

The principal impact of HKAS 32 on the Group is in
relation to convertible bonds issued by the Company
that contain both liability and equity components.
Previously, convertible bonds were classified as
liabilities on the balance sheet. HKAS 32 requires
an issuer of a compound financial instrument that
contains both financial liability and equity
components to separate the compound financial
instrument into the liability and equity components
on initial recognition and to account for these
components separately. In subsequent periods, the
liability component is carried at amortised cost using

the effective interest method.
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

APPLICATION OF NEW HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets

and financial liabilities

The Group has applied the relevant transitional
provisions in HKAS 39 with respect to the
classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities that are within the scope of
HKAS 39.

By 31st March, 2005, the Group classified and
measured its investment in equity securities in
accordance with the benchmark treatment of
Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 24
Accounting for Investments in Securities ("SSAP 24").
Under SSAP 24, investments in debt or equity
securities are classified as “investment securities”,
“other investments” or "held-to-maturity investments”
as appropriate. “Investment securities” are carried
at cost less impairment losses (if any) while “other
investments” are measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses included in profit or loss.
Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised
cost less impairment losses (if any). From 1st April,
2005 onwards, the Group has classified and
measured its investment in equity securities in
accordance with HKAS 39. Under HKAS 39, financial
assets are classified as “financial assets at fair value

"o

through profit or loss”, “available-for-sale financial

assets”, “loans and receivables”, or "held-to-maturity

noou

financial assets”. “Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” and “available-for-sale financial

assets” are carried at fair value, with changes in fair

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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APPLICATION OF NEW HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets

and financial liabilities (Continued)

values recognised in profit or loss and equity
respectively. Available-for-sale equity investments that
do not have quoted market prices in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments
are measured at cost less impairment after initial
recognition. “Loans and receivables” and "held-to-
maturity financial assets” are measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method after initial

recognition.

On 1st January, 2005, the Group classified and
measured its investment in equity securities in
accordance with the transitional provisions of HKAS
39. Investments in securities of the Group was
reclassified to available-for-sale investments (see
note 3A for the financial impact). The change in
classification has no material effect on the Group's

retained profit as at 1st April, 2005.



3.

=
53

ANNUAL REPORT 2006 = & & X F F #

& M B % x MW &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E BN BREE
INE-))

BHERBREEZFUANNC EBEER S
A&
RZZETAFHA-ANE  AKEH
RIEFFBEGFERFINRZRE
LA BEBEBRAEZERNIIZEBE
EReBRBE(REEESEHES
39%% - R FIE S A B 15 RIE 245
(BB E G AR BELASN) ©
é?“ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁAEEZi@
BE| [MHESREE] - [EXK
EUWREIXFEEIHAZERE
El - TRAE-RIBE/MNRAFE
AABRmzeRAE/HTHCEREA
Bl - BAFEFABRZERAER
NFEFE RPEZEHEER
Eéﬁ%°ﬁ@@@ﬁgﬁﬂ*ﬁ%
RN SRR ARTIE -

S

HEZZZXF=A=1—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

APPLICATION OF NEW HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities other than

debt and equity securities

From 1st April, 2005 onwards, the Group has
classified and measured its financial assets and
financial liabilities other than debt and equity
securities (which were previously outside the scope
of the SSAP 24 in accordance with the requirements
of HKAS 39). Financial assets under HKAS 39 are
classified as “financial assets at fair value through

nou

profit or loss”, “available-for-sale financial assets”,
“loans and receivables” or "held-to-maturity financial
assets”. Financial liabilities are generally classified
as “financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss” or “other financial liabilities". Financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised
in profit or loss directly. Other financial liabilities are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest

method after initial recognition.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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3. HMHIERBYIKEHE 3. APPLICATION OF NEW HONG
X8 (#) KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

XFIEHAHE T #Ew Owner-occupied Leasehold Interest in Land

RBTEFEE  FFHAHEELHMRE In previous years, owner-occupied leasehold land
FHIAME - BEREHE - BHEA and buildings were included in property, plant and
RAFE - RAFE - AEE2ER equipment and measured using the cost model. In
EEGENF 17RO - BES the current year, the Group has applied HKAS 17
BEEFEANEITR - T REFHELY “Leases”. Under HKAS 17, the land and buildings
BT EEFEEEHBROY 8K elements of a lease of land and buildings are
DHEE - WEHRLYFRBETER LR considered separately for the purposes of lease
BFIEB ZEASED AR - ik classification, unless the lease payments cannot be
BRAT  BEEN-REFREME allocated reliably between the land and buildings
4 EHOFTBEEHN T REFIE elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally
BZz@EASESENERT Ll treated as a finance lease. To the extent that the
ERGENHHEARBRKEMNOEN allocation of the lease payments between the land
MHARIE - BB AR - IR A H and buildings elements can be made reliably, the
NABEHEHE  AEECENER leasehold interests in land are reclassified to prepaid
REEHBXREY  EHUAEENZ lease payments under operating leases, which are
ZENFHA-BNRE RN EE carried at cost and amortised over the lease term
AT E - on a straight-line basis. This change in accounting

policy has been applied retrospectively and has no
material effect on the Group's retained profits as at

1st April, 2005.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

APPLICATION OF NEW HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Investment Properties

In the current year, the Group has, for the first time,
applied HKAS 40 “Investment Property” ("HKAS 40").
The Group has elected to use the fair value model
to account for its investment properties which
requires gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment properties to be recognised
directly in profit or loss for the year in which they
arise. In previous years, the Group has no investment

properties.

Share-based Payments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment” which requires an expense
to be recognised where the Group buys goods or
obtains services in exchange or shares or rights over
shares (“equity-settled transactions”), or in exchange
for other assets equivalent in value to a given
number of shares or rights over shares (“cash-settled
transactions”). The principal impact of HKFRS 2 on
the Group is in relation to the expensing of the fair
value of share options granted to directors and
employees of the Company, determined at the date
of grant of the share options, over the vesting period.
Prior to the application of HKFRS 2, the Group did
not recognise the financial effect of these share
options until they were exercised. The Group has
applied HKFRS 2 to share options granted on or
after 1st January, 2005. Since the Group did not
grant any share options before 31st March, 2005
but not yet vested before 1st April, 2005 and during
the year ended 31st March, 2006 and therefore,
the application of HKFRS 2 has no significant impact

to the Group in prior and current year.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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A. S BREE2HNEEE 3A. SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF
THE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING

i

POLICIES
et E N D e TS The effects of the changes in the accounting policies
B EMNT described above on the results for the current year

are as follows:

2006 2005
BT T
HK$ HK$
AR ESBE  Increase in effective interest
B2 BE expenses on the liability
A B 3 3 0 component of convertible bonds (1,272,958) -
REMEZ Increase in fair value of investment
RNFEE N properties 3,781,630 -
B H R g Non-amortisation of goodwill 6,122,872 -
HUH B 2 1 7] Non-amortisation of goodwill
GRS $E] of associates 2,760,138 -
REEEFMIEM  Increase in profit for the year 11,391,682 -
BEEBNRZINZEDAEIEARF Analysis of increase in profit for the year by line
JZ 8008 NG BUER Y D AT items presented according to their functions:
2006 2005
BT T
HK$ HK$
wKEMEZ Increase in fair value of investment 3,781,630 -
N EE M Properties
1T 20 Decrease in administrative expenses 8,883,010 -
A& B AR5 0 Increase in finance costs (1,272,958) -
11,391,682 -

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
U BE o B OB 7 B A B 2 A
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B REESHMNEELE 3A. SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF
= (&) THE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

The cumulative effects of the application of the new

ERFIRBMBHRELIN =

’JH
A

AE=A=+—AR-_ZEERENA HKFRSs as at 31st March, 2005 and 1st April, 2005
— AR B EghaT are summarised below:
R-BRIF R-BRIF R-BRIF
ZR=t-H ZR=t+-H MA-H
(BR5) il (BE5)) ik (BE5))
As at 31st As at 31st As at 1st
March, 2005 March, 2005 April, 2005
(originally stated) ~ Adjustments  (as restated)  Adjustments  (as restated)
B B B BT oy
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
EAEGER Impact of HKAS 17
VLA 4 |
N BERRE Property, plant and equipment 25,839,875 (10,673,267) 15,166,608 - 15,166,608
BHe Prepaid lease payments - 10,673,267 10,673,267 - 10,673,267
AEeHES Impact of HKAS 39
ER LA
FARE Investments in securities 3,657,952 - 3,657,952 (3,657952) -
MHERE Available-for-sale investments - - - 3,657,952 3657952
HEEVBRYE Total effects on assets 29,497,827 - 29497827 - 29497827
RN EAU B mELEREARE The application of the new HKFRSs has no effect to
RZZTWNFOMA—H 2= R the Group's equity on 1st April, 2004.
& o

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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A. BT BREBEMNTERE
= @)

3A. SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF
THE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

NEBWEES AU TELEMAA The Group has not early applied the following new

RARAEMRFER  BFT RRE - K
NAEEEY - WAL EHEL - &
RERETEHAKENGA MR
RERERTE -

standards, amendments and interpretations that have
been issued but are not yet effective. The directors
of the Company anticipate that the application of
these new standards, amendments or interpretations

will have no material impact on the consolidated

EABE

a5 R

financial statements of the Group.

HKAS 1 (Amendment)

HKAS 19 (Amendment)

Capital disclosures'

Actuarial gains and

Eig . 2F losses, group plans and
BT e disclosures?
E B e HNB % 7% HKAS 21 (Amendment)  Net investment in a
F21H (BHTA)  FREA foreign operation®
Ek e Eg| HEEERX HKAS 39 (Amendment)  Cash flow hedge
ERELACHE SR accounting of forecast
CHE RS intragroup transactions?
stk
E e N EBERE HKAS 39 (Amendment)  The fair value option?
£ 395 (BETA)
Z @ = Al B TR IEIR A 42 HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4 Financial guarantee
30 REE (Amendments) contracts?
B A ¥R E 2R
A5k (BFTA)
BB ERE Y aE Y HKFRS 6 Exploration for and
YR 65 B R T2 evaluation of mineral
resources?
EEERE SETA : HKFRS 7 Financial instruments:
BB 75 BE Disclosures!
=& (BRMBHRE Br—IERH HK(IFRIC) — INT 4 Determining whether an
nEESe) e Lo arrangement contains a
NV lease?
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SA. S BREE2HNEEE 3A. SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF

THE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) — INT 5

HK(IFRIC) — INT 6

HK(IFRIC) — INT 7

HK(IFRIC) — INT 8

HK(IFRIC) — INT 9

Rights to interests arising
from decommissioning,
restoration and
environmental
rehabilitation funds?
Liabilities arising from
participating in a specific
market — waste electrical
and electronic
equipment?

Applying the restatement
approach under HKAS
29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary
Economies®

Scope of HKFRS 2°

Reassessment of
embedded derivatives®

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

January, 2007.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

January, 2006.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

December, 2005.

st

st

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

March, 2006.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

May, 2006.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

June, 2006.

st

st
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TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEERNF=ZA=1—HBIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
the investment properties and certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair value, as

explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange and by the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its

subsidiaries.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,

as appropriate.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and

expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the
Group's equity therein. Minority interests in the net
assets consist of the amount of those interests at
the date of the original business combination and
the minority’s share of changes in equity since the
date of the combination. Losses applicable to the
minority in excess of the minority's interest in the
subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests
of the Group except to the extent that the minority
has a binding obligation and is able to make an

additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus
any costs directly attributable to the business
combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the
conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3 are

recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.
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TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TERNF=A=1—HBIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an
asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the cost of the business combination over the
Group's interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree's
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the

excess is recognised immediately in profit and loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree
is initially measured at the minority’s proportion of
the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and

contingent liabilities recognised.

Goodwill

Gooawill arising on acquisition before 1st January,

2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary for
which the agreement date is before 1st January,
2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group's interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant

subsidiary at the date of acquisition.
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

For previously capitalised goodwill, the Group has
discontinued amortisation from 1st April, 2005
onwards, and such goodwill is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that
the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill

related may be impaired.

Goodwill arising on acquisition on or after Ist

January, 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or
an associate for which the agreement date is on or
after 1st January, 2005 represents the excess of the
cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiary at
the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at

cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a
subsidiary is presented separately in the balance
sheet. Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition
of an associate (which is accounted for using the
equity method) is included in the cost of the

investment of the associate.
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THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition on or after Ist
January, 2005 (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
arising from an acquisition of subsidiary is allocated
to each of the relevant cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a financial year, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on
the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in the income statement. An
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Goodwill on acquisition of associates is included in
the carrying amount of interest in associates and is
tested for impairment whenever there are indications

that interest in associates may be impaired.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is
included in the determination of the amount of profit

or loss on disposal.
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition on or after Ist

January, 2005 (Continued)

Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries is
recorded at historical cost and the excess of the
cost of acquisition over the carrying amounts of net

assets acquired is recognised as goodwill.

Interests in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are carried in
the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted
for post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of
the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the
associate, less any identified impairment loss. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in that associate, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
An additional share of losses is provided for and a
liability is recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations

or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of
the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant

associate.
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4, ETESITHEHE &) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

WS Revenue recognition

WRRE W B AT ES Revenue is measured at the fair values of

2o consideration received or receivable.

FERTR2 4 AIEHEEERG Medical and dental consultation income is recognised

BT ABE o when the related services are rendered.

BRIS M B (R A ARTS A B B IR T Management and administrative service fee income

BGEEEREMSEREERERAARE - in relation to provision of healthcare services is
recognised when services are rendered.

LA BRATIRESBIGE Y E5H® Licence fee income is recognised with reference to

FON the terms of the relevant agreements.

1RhE | E R RN R EReER Sales of healthcare, pharmaceutical products and

SN ERRIEEEERESRED AR - surgical equipment are recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

BELE I HENACABERIRES Sales revenue from restaurant operations are

RIPR TSRS FER A BE o recognised when services are rendered to customers.

SREAEFAWMATIRE B AS Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on

EEEREEMNE (ReREERY a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding

ERN B R RS W KB T and at the effective interest rate applicable, which

BESEETEE Y b %) 3 AR R 208 is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash

2o receipts through the expected life of the financial

asset to that asset's net carrying amount.
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group’ right to receive payment have been

established.

Other consultancy fee income is recognised when

the related services are rendered.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of the
assets over their estimated useful lives, using the

straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which

the item is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the
course of development for production, rental or for
administrative purposes, the leasehold land
component is classified as a prepaid lease payment
and amortised over a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Depreciation of buildings commences
when they are available for use (i.e. when they are
in the location and condition necessary for them to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by

management).

Investment properties

On initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured using the fair
value model. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of investment property are included

in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the consolidated income
statement in the year in which the item is

derecognised.
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, are capitalised as part of cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment (other than goodwill)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amounts, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised an income
immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.
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TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All

other leases are classified as operating leases.

Leasing
The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in the consoldiated income statement on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised as an expense

on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense

over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit
scheme and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
are charged as expenses as they fall due. Payments
made to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
are dealt with as payments to defined contribution
plans where the Group's obligations under the
schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined

contribution retirement benefit plan.
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recorded in its functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are re-
translated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are re-
translated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the re-translation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss for
the year. Exchange differences arising on the re-
translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except
for differences arising on the re-translation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised directly in equity. For such non-
monetary items, any exchange component of that

gain or loss are also recognised directly in equity.
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THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's operations in the People's Republic of China
("PRC") are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and
their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised as a separate
component of equity (the translation reserve). Such
translation differences are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which the PRC operation is

disposed of.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the consolidated income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither

the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all

or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged
or credited in the consolidated income statement,
except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is

also dealt with in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the balance sheet when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

recognised immediately in the income statement.

Loans and receivables

Trade and other receivables, amounts due
from associates/investees/related parties/minority
shareholders of subsidiaries, amount due from a
director and bank balances are measured at initial
recognition at fair value, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in
the consolidated income statement when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The
allowance recognised is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the effective interest rate computed at initial

recognition.
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
has two subcategories, including financial assets held
for trading and those designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition. At each balance
sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as any of
the other categories (set out above). For available-
for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition. An impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment losses will

not reverse in subsequent periods.
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THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by
the Group are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. The Group's financial liabilities are
generally classified as other financial liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of financial

liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after

deducting all of its liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Trade and other payables, amounts due to minority
shareholders of subsidiaries and bank and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest method.
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain
both financial liability and equity components are
classified separately into respective liability and
equity components on initial recognition. On initial
recognition, the fair value of the liability component
is determined using the prevailing market interest
of similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between the proceeds of the issue of the convertible
bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the embedded option for
the holder to convert the loan notes into equity, is

included in equity (convertible bonds equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity
component, represented by the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible bonds equity
reserve until the embedded option is exercised (in
which case the balance stated in convertible bonds
equity reserve will be transferred to share premium).
Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry
date, the balance stated in convertible bonds equity
reserve will be released to retained earnings. No
gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement upon conversion or expiration of the

option.
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TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds (Continued)

Transaction costs, if any that relate to the issue of
the convertible bonds are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the proceeds. Transaction costs relating
to the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period
of the convertible bonds using the effective interest

method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised directly in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

For financial liabilities, they are removed from the
Group’s balance sheet (i.e. when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires). The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid or payable is recognised

in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment

transactions

Share options granted to employees of the Company
The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, or recognised as an expense
in full at the grant date when the share options
granted vest immediately, with a corresponding

increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited or are unexercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in equity (share option reserve) will be transferred

to accumulated profits.
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5. i RAEEM2ZE 5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
ERIR UNCERTAINTY

RERBAEESFERER  BEER In the process of applying the Group's accounting
BBILR  HARKZHEREME policies, management makes various estimates
FHEL R EMEE - MAl e ERL ELR based on past experiences, expectations of the future
EMBHMRAERBBE AP R and other information. The key sources of estimation
BEEZFERFEEEAT : uncertainty that may significantly affect the amounts

recognised in the consolidated financial statements

are disclosed below:

BmERE Impairment of goodwill
ETHEESHBRER  FEMET Determining whether goodwill are impaired requires
BRI ZRAIREL ZEATE an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
B -EAFEEFEFTEREEH MGG generating units to which goodwill have been
BIRENEREE 2 ARBEERE - allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
BEMBE X HEHEBE - R Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
TRNF-A=Z+—HBZzHEEREER to arise from the cash-generating units and a suitable
AEeEAEZHBERERENWE discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
21 e The carrying amount off goodwill at 31st March,

2006 and the details of the recoverable amount

calculation are disclosed in note 21.
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HEZZZXF=A=1—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment loss on trade receivables

The policy for doubtful receivables of the Group is
based on the ongoing evaluation of the collectability
and aging analysis of the trade receivables and on
the management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
creditworthiness, the past collection history of each
customer and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate.
If the financial conditions of the customers of the
Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment
of their ability to make payments, additional

impairment loss may be required.

FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables and borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. Management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.
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FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is
mainly attributable to its bank balances and other
borrowings. Bank balances and bank loans at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate
risk. Details of the Group’s bank and other

borrowings have been disclosed in note 37.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need

arise.

Currency risk

Certain trade and other receivables of the Group
are denominated in foreign currencies. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arise.
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties failure to perform their
obligations as at 31st March, 2006 is the carrying
amount of trade receivables as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at each balance sheet date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group's credit

risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because

the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a number of

counterparties and customers.

Price risk

The Group's investments held for trading are
measured at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity security
price risk. The management intended to manage
this exposure by implementing a policy to maintain

a portfolio of investments with different risk profiles.
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~

EEHEREER 7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

EEBDEBE=FERKERKIE Turnover represents the aggregate of the net
FRAZ REH T amounts received and receivable from third parties

and is summarised as follows:

2006 2005

B BT

HK$ HK$

RUBERERFRERS  Provision of healthcare and dental services 137,037,105 113,317,654
HERREM Sales of healthcare and pharmaceutical

R#m products 16,701,566 15,911,464

HELERKERNE Sales of cardiology and peripheral

HBIMF &S vascular related surgical equipment 56,545,860 50,306,819

2t Others 20,894,831 -

231,179,362 179,535,937

RAEER XEERBEKH /N For management purposes, the Group is currently

Rgana - 2Rl R)EHERRE organised into four major operating divisions — (1)

RABRSE - () EREEm KB provision of healthcare and dental services, (2) sales

o ()HEE L RF N EE mE RSN
MFMESR - R@EM - WEDEAR
AEBEEHRAETENEEN ZER -

of healthcare and pharmaceutical products and (3)
sales of cardiology and peripheral vascular related
surgical equipment, and (4) others. These divisions
are the basis on which the Group on which the

Group reports its primary segement information.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
U B o7 B A B 2 A
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7. EXBENRIEER (E 1. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION (Continued)

* O - REAGEEZAE * Provision of - Operations of the
BRRRE KIEDF - MR healthcare and Group’s medical
ST BERTBRNEE dental services and dental practices,
Bk 7% NATHBUR % A K #% provision of

HIREEBHO]HA

- management and

T2 EFA o o .
administrative
services to private
medical and dental
practitioners and
licensing of the
name “Town Health
Centre”.

* e — EERREE DR & Sales of healthcare — Sales of healthcare
R & m RHEEBERAN and pharmaceutical and pharmaceutical
2 m & SIMEE - products products including
B n radioactive isotopes

for medical uses.
NN SN ¥ . .
Y OHELH FERT - B R & Sales of cardiology — Sales of cardiology
BMEEE  BEHEBLHEEEE . .
and peripheral and peripheral
& 18 B8 32 [0 5 A8 BE SN B 1iT
- vascular related vascular related
SMREFIT RS . . . .
i} surgical equipment surgical equipment
B3 _ _
to hospitals, medical
institutions and
medical practitioners.
* H i — EARBRNERRK Others — Catering services and

sales of garment.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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ZEERNF=ZA=1—HBIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

7. EXBERIEER (Z) 1. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION (Continued)

#3658 Business segments
BELENRRENE
BERiER R
ELERRER L Sales of cardilogy
TR Sales of healthare and peripheral
Provsion of healtheare ~and pharmaceical vascula related i it
and dental services products surgical equipment Others Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
A1 3 i i 1 BT A7 At An At
HE§ i) HKS HKS Hks HKS HKS HK§ HKS HK§
(1staed)
g1 TURNOVER 137031105 1133765 16,701,566 15911464 56,545,860 50306819 20,894,831 - BILIT36 17935937
RESULTS
Seget el DOGHS (EE0ET) IO (405 2SI (125150)  aog) - TSR (455
Icrese i o vlee of
Invesment propertes 3,181,630 -
Unalocated corporte
income/(expenses) 207 (3710819
Finance costs (2399.910)  (7675%4)
(an on dlion &nd

disposl of essadites
Share of resus of associes
(i on patil disasal of
a subsidiy
Amorsaton of goodul
a1ising on acquifns
of asocies
Improvement lss recognised
i espect of goodil
a1ising on acquisions
of associates
T Hlovances for amounts due
NERR fom asscites

Profit loss) before taaton
il Tarein

el Proft oss) for the

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
E ;E‘é jied o7 B A B 2 A

510479
s 008 . - . - . SN 311 i

33056

(876527

(3321080)  (24066490) - - - - - - [n3am080) (2406640)

(189559
e (7790500)
L) (157)

AR (39050
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BEELDEER () 7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

XB%oE (&) Business segments (Continued)
EORMRRRAS
FERRER REANZHER
FHBERR JEE: Salesof carinlogy
RFHRR Sales of healtheare and peripheral
Proision of healthcare ~~ and pharmaceutical  vascular rlated it g
and dental services products surgical equipment Others Total

w6 N5 me N5 M6 W5 W6 N5 mE 00
B B B & B E B B B E
HE o HS O HS Mg HE HE HS W HE S

ASSETS
Seqment assel 136,226,974 50603950 24867142 22927905 53451410 45639167 90,293,765 - 304,839,281 119,171,020
Inerests n associates 0550 20941979 - - - - - - 055 20941979
Undllocated asets 1460591 37174897
L Tofl asets JTS0T410 17728789
& LIABILITIES
PEE Seqment liiities 16,283,598 18671458 411569 637886 20734685 12194923 6,606,374 - 409,196 31464207
rILER Unelocated s 104905708 1044039
#aE Toal iltes 148,001,008 41 904666
OTHER INFORMATION
(eptl expendiure 63975 7009077 289,115 94994 204919 25150044 1,157,655 - BRaTEIM 306115
Depreciaton of property,
plt &nd equpment JAB0931 14366567 167153 2350048 G401 16142% 4515 - 13050 16554871

Amotstion of goodul arisng
o acquitions of subsidrs,
medice and dentel pracices - 4310 - 09660 - 6801 - - - 78881
Impaiment loss recognised n
fespect of
- Gooduil arisng on
acquistions of subsides,
medice and dentl pracices = 1563743 - - - 358 - - = 1923861
- Gooduilarsing on acguifions
of ssocee 33080 - - - - - - - Lane -

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
E@@@E}Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂu
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7. EXERIEER B 7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

BESE Geographical segments

AEBZEBUNRBERTE - 24 The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong
BEERELTIERERESREES and the the PRC. Provision of healthcare and dental
NERZEBETINEBET - HEL services and sales of healthcare and pharmaceutical
R R EBMERBINEFlESE products are carried out in Hong Kong. Sales of
EKAURABEEEEET - cardiology and peripheral vascular related surgical

equipment are carried out in the PRC and Hong

Kong.

The following provides an analysis of the Group's

AT AR EE LR T EN 52 &
EEAN (TwmE SR,/ RIS IIR)

turnover by geographical market, irrespective of the

origin of the goods/services:

1 BR Bt A0 % R
(B#E) nE
Contributions to
EEH profit (loss)
Turnover before taxation
2006 2005 2006 2005
BT BT BT BT
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
(&E51)
(restated)
EB Hong Kong 183,710,985 135,112,625 25,284,446 (85,224,394)
# PRC 47,468,377 44,423,312 2,455,176 7,315,344

231,179,362 179,535,937 27,739,622 (77,909,050)

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
U BE o B OB 7 B A B 2 A
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BEELDEER () 7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

WE D (&) Geographical segments (Continued)

UWTABREEREHMEDST 2 HDEE The following is an analysis of the carrying amount
EEOEIIRYDE WMERZEY of segment assets and additions to property, plant
RE - and equipment, analysed by geographical area in

which the assets are located:

PREECKREE B

R=ZB=+—-H BE-RA=t-HLEE
Carrying amount of Capital expenditure
segment assets For the year ended

At 31st March, 31st March,
2006 2005 2006 2005
BT BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
(e E75)
(restated)
BB Hong Kong 370,535,090 142,320,256 48,875,074 31,015,320
H PRC 26,972,320 34,967,640 100,250 1,240,795

397,507,410 177287896 48,975,324 32,256,115

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
E@@@E}Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂu
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8. H A

REFITHERZHEHRA
RELTREZBEERA
HERFEERE 2 RE
BERA
ﬁ¢3§&52“$@%%

BERIMA
%EWA

9. HMEX

RATEERRZAERR

-RERERAAGHE
~ERRREARRE
~RENBAR BB

8. OTHER INCOME

Interest income from bank deposits
Dividend income from listed investments
Gain on disposal of investments held for trading
Rental income
Fair value adjustment on investment
held for trading, excluding dividend income

Sundry income

9. OTHER EXPENSES

Impairment loss recognised in respect of:
- goodwill arising on acquisitions of associates
- amount due from investee
- goodwill arising on acquisitions of
subsidiaries, medical and dental practices
Allowances for amounts due from associates
Amortisation of goodwill arising on

acquisitions of associates

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
U B [ A A

2006 2005

B BT
HK$ HK$
2,281,435 60,483
2,700,265 140,884
92,575 868,314
664,548 -
444,076 -
3,663,883 1,727,798
9,846,782 2,797,479
2006 2005

B BT
HK$ HK$
3,327,080 24,066,490
538,355 -

= 19,236,861

= 1,898,658

= 8,765,277
3,865,435 53,967,286
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10. B & R A 10. FINANCE COSTS
2006 2005
BT BT
HK$ HKS
IATRIEEZHE : Interest on:

- ARIEARNEY - Bank borrowings wholly repayable
EBEZBITEE within five years 377,320 665,413
—RITEX - Bank overdraft 196,620 31,740
- ARES ~ Convertible bonds 1,825,970 90,411
2,399,910 787,564

1. BEREHEKZ 2T U 11. GAIN ON DILUTION AND
= DISPOSAL OF ASSOCIATES

HE_ZZRAF=-A=1+—HLLFE The amounts for the year ended 31st March, 2005
2 REE - B35 (1) PA250,00078 7T 2 X comprised (i) the loss on disposal of the Group's
BHEXAEERMNEZESAERAFZ entire 25% interest in Fortune Way Trading Limited
2 E25%Em 2 EE - (A EBTZ at the consideration of HK$250,000; (ii) the gain
RELEXREERBHAERAGZE on disposal of its entire 25% interest in Smart
H250% a2 Was » R(iNEEERE Leading Limited at the consideration of HK$1; and
PIRIFERAR ([EEERE]) KRH R (iii) the gain on dilution of 7.8% interest in
—TEEMENA+TN\BEBRZTEIE Plasmagene Biosciences Limited (“Plasmagene”)
RETREENEBERT.8%ER upon the listing of Plasmagene’s shares on the GEM
Wz o Board of the Stock Exchange on 18th June, 2004.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
E@@@E}Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂu
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HE-ZTTRF=F=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

12. EEHEREENE

FAAKFETEAEFTIHME -
ERMAIRIMAREBE 2 83,
BE o ifE - YEBRESENFAREML
B & -

ERIITRIFAITE S RBILIFANTT
E=ZHFMABHINMOT ¢

HE-ZERE For the year ended

ZAZT-HIEERE 315t March, 2006
HiTEE Executive directors
EETE Dr. Cho Kwai Chee
FRZE Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Benent
EEELE Mr, Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin
FHTES Non-executive directors
Beslhs Mr. Chan Kam Chiu
BEAATHAL Mr. Wai Kwok Hung
MEELE Mr, Ho Kwok Wah
EERALATST Dr. Frances Choi Chee Ming, JP
@ Total

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
B o7 B A B 2 A

12.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. None of the directors has waived any

emoluments during the year.

Details of emoluments of individual executive and
non-executive and independent non-executive

directors are set out as below:

BB
HE LSS
Z%  Retirement

H&R Eth iR Tt benefits WeaE
#%  Salariesand  Performance scheme Total
Fees other benefits bonus  contributions  emoluments

(M)
(note)

BT BT B B B

HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HKS

- 1,440,000 3,350,000 12,000 4,802,000

- 1,347408 328314 12,000 1687722
1,031,970 - - - 1,031,970
1,031,970 2,787408 3678314 24,000 1521,692

50,000 - - - 50,000

50,000 - - - 50,000

25,000 - - - 25,000

125,000 - - - 125,000
1,156,970 2,787,408 3678314 24,000 7646,692
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12. EEMERIEEM S (&%) 12. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS
AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS
BAREA
HE L
ZB  Retirement
521 EtER ta benefits WeaE
#4&  Salariesand  Performance scheme Total
Fees other benefits bonus contributions  emoluments
g3
(note)
B B B B B
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
HE-SZ1% For the year ended
SAZT-RALLER 315t March, 2005
ynEE Executive directors
ERT7EE Dr. Cho Kwai Chee - 3,853,158 5,160,000 12,000 9,025,158
FRZE Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Benent - 1,022,000 2345272 12,000 3,379,272
EoksA Mr. Cho Kam Luk - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
ERENA Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin 918,000 - - - 918,000
918,000 7875,158 7505,272 24,000 16,322,430
FYTES Non-executive directors
Retlik Mr. Chan Kam Chiu 50,000 - - - 50,000
EEMATAT Mr. Wai Kwok Hung 50,000 - - - 50,000
fIEE x4 Mr. Ho Kwok Wah 13,000 - - - 13,000
113,000 - - - 113,000
&5 Total 1,031,000 7875,158 7505,272 24,000 16,435,430

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
E@@@E}Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁig
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13. EEME 13. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
FEESFMALY  HPME(ZF The aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid
ZHhE: MB)REARBARTES A individuals included two (2005: two) executive

Mec BN EXHEI2- B T=%

- directors of the Company, whose emoluments are
—EERF ZR)EEFMALZ

included in note 12 above. The aggregate

e EEENT -
emoluments of the remaining three (2005: three)
highest paid individuals are as follows:
2006 2005
BT BT
HK$ HK$
e REmE Salaries and other allowances 3,419,500 2,160,000
KBTI (H7) Performance bonus (note) 1,532,021 12,533,405
R B R Retirement benefits scheme contributions 36,000 36,000
4,987,521 14,729,405
MRT=%2(ZTZRF: =R) B H The emoluments of the remaining three (2005:
MATZMEN FUTRE : three) highest paid individuals were within the
following bands:
2006 2005
EEAE EEBAH
Number of Number of
employees employees
1,500,001/ 7t 2,000,000/ 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 3 -
3,000,0007% 7T & 3,500,000/ 7T HK$3,000,000 to HK$3,500,000 - 1
4,000,000/ 7T £ 4,500,000/ 7T HK$4,000,000 to HK$4,500,000 - 1
7,000,001 7T £7,500,0007% 7T HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 - 1
3 3

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
U B o7 B A B 2 A
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13. EEME (®) 13. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

FR - AKEVERNAEE=H A During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
TS EAMASRIMAKRE Group to the five highest paid individuals, as an
e aBEE 2 fE - inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

B RIESTHSE / FTREREBTY Y Note: Pursuant to the service agreement entered into

N " . between each of the medical/dental practitioners
RisGE BATESETHS R dical/dental pra
and the Group, the practitioners are entitled to a

RERB|IEA - BERE EMIRH fixed salary and cash performance bonus of such
fRiG - AB X FRZHAMERZE amount representing a certain percentage of the
AR (KB BERmE  GaL% monthly net profit (or, as the case may be, the

monthly turnover) generated by the medical or

BHWETESL - ZESLIZ : . : . .
dental practices at which he provides his services.

EREMARMER - LRELH The percentage is determined with reference to
E2BEBRLZEMNKEMERE © the qualification and experience of the practitioners,

as well as the profitability of the medical centres
at which the practitioners are practicing.

14. H1E 14. TAXATION

2006 2005
BT AT
HK$ HK$
(Z71)
(restated)
XHBE The charge comprises:
—AEERENG - Hong Kong Profits Tax attributable
BAEFNEH to the Group 1,765,527 393,816
- TFERETE — Underprovision in prior year 2,042,042 (1,512)
IR E (M sE38) - Deferred tax (note 38):
- REE — Current year 2,483,594 79,269
6,291,163 471,573
BAENGWIAFEE Z Bt BRT G Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2005:
MIZ175% (ZFZRHF : 17.5%) 5 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the
go year.
EERIIE V7 SIS SN EE38 o Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 38.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
E@@@E}Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁig
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14. BiE (&)
£ P B4 B % A B4 25 % T 51 B A
R (B 18) HEE I T -

14. TAXATION (Continued)

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the
profit (loss) before taxation per the income

statement as follows:

2006 2005
B BT
HK$ HK$
(E7)
(restated)
BB A& A (B18) Profit (loss) before taxation 27,739,622 (77,909,050)
BAMFEHEI17.5%  Tax at the domestic income tax rate
(ZZTHF 1 175%)  of 17.5% (2005: 17.5%)
HECBIE 4,854,434 (13,634,084)
FE T AR TR A B Tax effect of expenses that are not
PAHIBEX 2 deductible in determining
HBEE taxable profit 2,911,825 11,170,047
B ERTUR M i Tax effect of income that are not
BHERBTKAZ taxable in determining
MEEE taxable profit (1,843,993) (172,159)
ABERMIEEEZ Tax effect of tax losses
M2 not recognised 754,441 4,068,948
LB ERREEZ Tax effect of share of results
mEEE of associates (83,175) 123,730
AMAERtEEREY Tax effect of deductible temporary
MR E differences not recognised 687,832 298,111
BRI ARER Utilisation of tax losses not previously
HIBEE recognised (3,032,243) (1,381,508)
TFETR (B B 1E Under (over) provision in prior year 2,042,042 (1,512)
AEERIEZH Tax expense for the year 6,291,163 471,573

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
U B o7 B A B 2 A
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REERN (BE)

15. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

2006 2005
B BT
HKS$ HK$
FERF (BB Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived
EMBRTIIES at after charging:
BIMA Staff costs

—~EEHMH (lE12) - Directors' remuneration (note 12) 7,646,692 16,435,430

- HEIRA — Other staff costs 78,188,021 61,162,597

- Hit B TRKER ~ Other staff's retirement benefits

EE TN scheme contributions 1,804,220 1,028,572

—EHE — Severance payment - 12,600

87,638,933 78,639,199

FEEE Allowance for inventories 1,725,890 1,550,335

ZEA M Auditors’ remuneration 2,065,420 973,600

ERABATHZBEEMRA  Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 55,412,957 47752,292
nE BERZEZ Depreciation of property, plant and

e equipment 6,134,030 18,554,871
JEM R R A FEUMRFRTE  Impairment loss on trade and

ZREBE other receivables 2,537,632 2,157,545
HENE BER Loss on disposal of property,

HE2ER plant and equipment 73,639 117,937
EREEFR Net loss on foreign exchange - 13,676
FEENHENK Release of prepaid lease payments 169,616 186,771
JE{EE 2 NAIRIB (3F A Share of taxation of associates (included in

EEHEARIRE) share of results of associates) 934,097 583,961
Rt ATHEE and after crediting:

REFREMEZBREWA Gross rental income from investment properties 737,795 -
W EEEERAL Less: Direct operating expenses that generated
BEREERAX rental income (73,247) -
REZEMEZFHEUWA Net rental income from investment properties 664,548 -
FEMR FUR BB B R Write back of impairment loss
on account receivables 2,398,978 -
REFERMEEBRAL  Write back of impairment loss on slow moving

(FI3E) inventories (note) 1,268,712 -

R b Net gain on foreign exchange 152,450 -

Kret - ARNREFEERFRERKREH
& BRABFEREBEESEDH
ERA -

Note: Write back of impairment loss on slow moving
inventories to cost of sales as impaired inventories

were subsequently sold during the year.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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16. RS 16. DIVIDENDS

2006 2005
BT B
HKS$ HK$
R B ER0.002 T Interim dividend paid HK$0.002 per share
(ZZZh% : FEmL)  (2005: HKENIl) 9,993,188 -

17. 8RER (F#E) 17. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

RATEBRAFEABRMGEERER The calculation of the basic eamings (loss) per share
BN (BR) DERATERT attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the

Company is based on the following data:

2006 2005
B BT
HKS$ HK$
R EGREXERN Earnings for the purpose
Z B of basic earnings per share:
ARAREREA Profit (loss) for the year attributable to
EEAFEE R (BR) equity holders of the Company 20,030,499 (84,330,685)
REEGREREF 2 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
T E N T & for the purpose of basic earnings per share 4,527,985,666 1,326,342,601
AEEREERNTERRARFZ The computation of diluted eamings per share does
RNTEAIRKRESFEER - LT AR not assume the conversion of the Company’s
TR MR EF IS MERERN (ZF outstanding convertible bonds since their exercise
THhE: BREBRYD) - would result in an increase in profit per share (2005:

decrease in loss per share).

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
U B o7 B A B 2 A
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17. BREF (Bi8) @) 17. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
(Continued)

TREA TN EEHERERRH (B The following table summaries the impact on both
By zwe basic earnings (loss) per share as a result of:
HERER
B (B8 28
Impact on basic
earnings (loss) per share

BE_ZTAFE BE-ZBLFE

=ZA=t-H =ZRA=+—H
EEE HEE
Year ended Year ended

31st March, 2006  31st March, 2005

Al A

HK cents HK cents

HER 28T Figures before adjustments 0.19 (6.36)
SHBEEHMES  Adjustments arising from changes

AR (RHE3A) in accounting policies (see Note 3A) 0.25 -

BB/ KEI Reported/restated 0.44 (6.36)

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. REW 18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
AT
HK$
NF1E FAIR VALUE
RZEZTRFMA—A At st April, 2005 -
NE Addition 25,814,100
Uit B BT B~ A BF AT Uk B Acquired on an acquisition of a subsidiary 4,000,000
PR ERAFMEEM  Increase in fair value recognised in the
income statement 3,781,630
MY WERZEERE  Transfer from property, plant and equipment 402,581
B 78 < 10 & o R Transfer from prepaid lease payments 1,826,689
RZZTEXREF=ZA=1+—H8 At31st March, 2006

ARE
AETZHEEREENE - BFME
EAFEMBERARSBEANEMESR
([BBEREMEZES 3
fMEFEEENEMESE
REMSEWEMBEER -
BUMEZTEERERHE -

KREMEDRPHBLOFE - BUR
BB MAASERREBELEROR
BEUMBESSFEERNEEZAZL
WhHZMERROGBAATFERAGE
EBEBRARIEREME -

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
B o7 B A B 2 A

35,825,000

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
at 31st March, 2006 have been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on that date by
Larry H.C. Tam & Associates Ltd., independent
professional valuers. Larry H.C. Tam & Associates
Ltd. is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors ("HKIS"). The valuation, which conforms
to HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties published

by the HKIS, was arrived at by reference to market

evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.

The investment property was under medium term
lease and situated in Hong Kong. All of the Group's
property interests in land held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment

properties.
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

MH*E - - BERKE 19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT
RE B
REEY
BEZETF BRR
Building in HE £E IER
Hong Kong under ~ #] {5 Furniture AE B3]
medium-term Leasehold and Motor  Tools and G
leases  improvements fixtures vehicle  equipment Total
AT A A B A A
HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS
AE cost
RZFEME At Tt Aprl, 2004,

mA-A - R%25 as originally stated 9155209 2422863 462,048 192492 1771447 51752509
FinEE e ER Fffect of the application

VLA 2 of HKAS 17 (7340732) - - - - (7340732)
RZZZME At 1t April, 2004,

MA—-H && s restated 1814497 24,228,263 462,048 192,492 17714477 444,111
RE Additions 745,985 699,861 251,365 54100 2,693,660 4444971
KERBRR Acquisiion of subsidiaries - - 54,804 - 1,076,171 1,130,975
HE Disposals - (669,255) (349,474) - (376384)  (1395113)
RZZEREZA=T—H A 3lst March, 2005 2,560,482 24,258,869 418,743 246,592 21,107.924 48,592,610
hE Additions - 3,259,372 649,219 1447719 2417876 1774186
WERERT Acquision of subsidiaries 284,000 279,588 8413 305508 76,070 678,579
& Disposals - (162,662) (25216) (36067)  (939000)  (1,162945)
BRERENE Transfer to investment

properties (407168) - - - - (407,168)
RZFEREZA=F-8 M 3Ist March 2006 2437314 21635,167 1,051,159 1,688,752 22,662,870 55,475,262

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited

B Oofg B B 7

B &
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A
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HE-ZTTRF=F=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

19. ¥ - MENRZE (#) 19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (Continued)

RE B
REEY
REZET B R
Building in HE RkE IR
Hong Kong under ~ #J X E (& Furniture RE B3]
medium-term Leasehold and Motor ~ Tools and &t
leases  improvements fixtures vehicle  equipment Total
B A A AT A AT
HKS HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HKS
ik DEPRECIATION
RZFERERA-A At 1st April, 2004,
R% 23] s originally stated 276,182 9,989,744 190618 92300 5531255 16080697
FEEET LR Fffect of the application
21T T E of HKAS 17 (138399) - - - - (138,399)
WZFEWENA-A At 1t April, 2004,
mEj| s restated 138,383 9,989,744 190618 92300 5531255 15,942,298
EEXH Charge for the year 71295 13,854,262 151,708 005 4435381 18,554,871
LB 88 Eliminated on disposals - (46741) (278211) - (325715)  (1,071,167)
RZEFFREZAZT-A  At3Ist March, 2005 209,678 23,376,765 64,115 13455 9640919 33426002
EERH Charge for the year 194316 1,172,657 248,468 NI 4297446 6,134,030
HERHH Eliminated on disposals - (21,818) (6211) (32632)  (242712) (303,433)
BRERENE Transfer to investment
properties (4,587) - - - - (4,587)
WZEEREZA=T-H  At3lst March, 2006 399,407 24,527,604 306,372 33036 13695593 39252012
REE CARRYING VALUES
RZZEAE=A=T—H  A3lstMarch 2006 2037907 3,107563 744787 1365716 8967277 16,223,250
WZZTRE=A=T-H  At3lstMarch, 2005 2,350,804 862,104 354,628 112067 11467005 15,166,608

R 2 &

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
E ;E‘é jicd [
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19. ¥ - MEMNZE (#) 19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

FrEDERBEFERAT FEGTRR Depreciation are provided using the straight-line

1 method, at the following rates per annum:

BF 5% Buildings 5%

HEMEEE —FHRHEE Leasehold improvements 3 years or over the term

FH (W EA2) of the lease, if shorter

RMEEE 20% Furniture and fixtures 20%

_E 20% Motor vehicle 20%

THERRZE 10-33'/5% Tools and equipment 10 — 33'/3%

20. ERHEERNR 20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

2006 2005
BT BT
HK$ HK$

RNEE 2 HBENK The Group's prepaid lease payments

BERERR comprise leasehold interest in land

MEAEARA 2 in Hong Kong under

T HE#EES medium-term lease 9,992,962 10,673,267
Bt ER ¥ i 4 Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Z AT
mENE E Current asset 242,727 253,171
FRBEE Non-current asset 9,750,235 10,420,096

9,992,962 10,673,267

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
E@@@E}Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂu
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HE-ZTTRF=F=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

21. & 21. GOODWILL
ARK
HWEAF FRBAH CEil
Medical and
Subsidiaries dental practices Total
BT BT BT
HKS HKS HKS
B & cosT
RZEEMEWMA—H At st April, 2004 37207039 14,786,180 51,993,219
e Acquisitions 26,680,169 - 26,680,169
RZEZTRE=A=1+—H At 31st March, 2005 63,887,208 14,786,180 78,673,388
Tﬂiﬁ BB SRS LA Elimination of accumulated amortisation
F 35 M K 2 51 8 8 upon the application of HKFRS 3
(R M5 3A) (see note 3A) (9,353,822) (2,834,929) (12,188,751)
e Acquisitions 261,585 10,446,874 10,708,459
RETH Reduction in consideration (3,929,100) - (3,929,100)
RZEEAE=A=1+—H At 31st March, 2006 50,865,871 22,398,125 73,263,996
iﬁﬁ‘ﬁ AMORTISATION
“EENEMA—H At st April, 2004 2,955,453 1404417 4,359,870
EF 32 ﬁ Charge for the year 6,398,369 1430512 7,828 881
RZEERE=-A=1+—H At 31st March, 2005 9,353,822 2,834,929 12,188,751
RRAEEMBHREER Elimination of accumulated amortisation
F 35 MR Rt 8 upon the application of HKFRS 3
(R M 3E3A) (see note 3A) (9,353,822) (2,834,929) (12,188,751)
RZEEAFE=ZA=1+—H At 31st March, 2006 - - -
HE IMPAIRMENT
RZZEMEWMA—H At st April, 2004 - 3,063,530 3,063,530
ERREEE Impairment loss recognised 14,897071 4,339,790 19,236,861
RZZZTHEMA—HA At Tst Apri, 2005 and
RZFBTRE 31st March, 2006
ZA=+-8 14,897071 7,403,320 22300391
BHEE CARRYING VALUES
RZEERF=-A=+—H At 31st March, 2006 35,968,800 14,994,805 50,963,605
RZEETRE=A=1+—H At 31st March, 2005 39,636,315 4547931 44,184,246

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
E ;Eii jied o7 B A B 2 A
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BE e
N-ZEERE=ZA=+—HH r gL
MEE10F 2 (Hat R FHAE
88 o

g B T S AR AR TR ) R I
ARAFEHEE L AL  UERE
WEREIRG Y RARERESSY
HEEETAZYE -

BN E7 AT - NEREAEH DSBS
HEROBERZETEDEHRE
XepBEAANE  AEKIER
—EReELEVREELEM) -
BBEEFMRYE - BELOMEE MAE
ZMEMRBINRFESRESRRE
Emk#Em R_ZETXF=A=+
—H o EREZRFEUZAEZER
B (KR EREBE) MT -

HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

21. GOODWILL (Continued)

Until 31st March 2005, Goodwill had been amortised
over its estimeted useful live ranging from 5 to 10

years.

Goodwill on acquisition of Pacific Medical (Holdings)
Company Limited and its subsidiaries have been
adjusted to reflect reduction in purchase
consideration arising from compensation on amount
of profit gurarantee provided by the selling

shareholders.

As explained in Note 7, the Group uses business
segments as its primary segment for reporting
segment information. For the purposes of impairment
testing, goodwill have been allocated to three
individual cash generating units (CGUs), namely,
medical and dental practices, trading of cardiology
and peripheral vascular related surgical equipment,
trading of healthcare and pharmaceutical products.
The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of
accumulated impairment losses) as at 31st March,

2006 allocated to these units are as follows:

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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BERIMZM
BABRAA
Dermatonic Skincare & Laser
Treatment Centre Limited
RRIMERAF
FREBERTRRE
BB LA
Pherson Limited

REERADA

HELHMEEENLE
RE TS -
BEBRERARAA
REMBRR :
Pacific Medical (Hong Kong)
Company Limited
Pacific Medical (China)
Company Limited
Pacific Medical (China) Group
Company Limited
LERABREHERAR

HERERER

LEBBHREEERRA
REKBRF :

REBBMBRAERRA

First Oriental Cyclotron Limited

FRESER (VE) BRAR

& M B % % MW &
S TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEERNF=ZA=1—HBIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

21. GOODWILL (Continued)

2006 2005
BT B
HKS$ HK
Medical and dental practices
Bright Dignity Limited 4,505,953 4,505,953
Dermatonic Skincare & Laser
Treatment Centre Limited 2,865,647 2,865,647
Town Health Dental Limited 5,252,613 4,547932
Town Health Medical & Dental
Services Limited 9,742,193 -
Pherson Limited 157,033 -
Silver Ascot Limited 104,552 -
22,627,991 11,919,532
Trading of cardiology and peripheral
vascular related surgical equipment:
Pacific Medical (Holdings) Company
Limited and its subsidiaries:
Pacific Medical (Hong Kong)
Company Limited
Pacific Medical (China)
Company Limited
Pacific Medical (China) Group
Company Limited
LEREERSVERAT 16,489,934 20,419,034
Trading of healthcare and pharmaceutical
products:
First Oriental Medical Technology Group
Limited and its subsidiaries:
First Oriental Medical Technology Limited
First Oriental Cyclotron Limited 8,366,944 8,366,944
Audio Health Hearing Care
(Shatin) Limited 3,478,736 3,478,736
11,845,680 11,845,680
50,963,605 44,184,246

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
E ;E‘é jied o7 B A B 2 A
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

21. GOODWILL (Continued)

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment,
or more frequently if there are indications that

goodwill might be impaired.

The recoverable amounts of CGU of medical and
dental practices have been determined based on
value in use calculations. That calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a period of 5 years, and
discount rate of 7.04%. Another key assumption for
the value in use calculations is the budgeted gross
margin, which is determined based on the unit's
past performance and management's expectations

for the market development.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs of trading of
cardiology and peripheral vascular related surgical
equipment and trading in healthcare and
pharmaceutical products are based on value in use
calculations. The key assumptions for the value in
use calculations are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling
prices and direct costs during the period from the
acquisition date to 31st March, 2006. Management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that
reflect current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The
growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts

and CGUs' past performances. Changes in selling

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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BE (&)
ENHEEARRSELEMZBE
REMET - SEE L REERERTN
TSBEEIREAARREAE
% BERBESREAZRGESE
BRI ZES RN REEEE B
B ARAFESEEE  RERE
70408 WERHZE T NF
CASH-BLEEZEA KRN
BRERREERE -

#HE O BT K iR I E AR B T D R AR
MRETCELAEUZRSRERAIRZE
REEEEIE 2 A F B MFE
E WEFHHENALNRSRENR
WERRRMELE - BeELEN
REEHENRSRERATMERER
BEMRZEREMNLREERE A
RIREHERRBE - PAAEZEMNER
HERBRCSEBERRALEEER
HHOTGERBAMETE -

K5

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited

B B OB B
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THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. GOODWILL (Continued)

prices and direct costs are based on past practices
and expectations of future changes in the market.
The cash flow forecasts for the CGU of trading in
healthcare and pharmaceutical products is derived
from the most recent financial budgets for the next
5 years approved by management using a discount
rate of 7.04%, no impairment loss is identified and
recognised in the consolidated income statement

for the year ended 31st March, 2006.

Cash flow projections of the CGU of trading of
cardiology and peripheral vascular related surgical
equipment is based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a period or 5 years, and
cash flows beyond the 5th year period are
extrapolated by assuming no growth rate. Cash flow
projections during the budget period for the CGU
are also based on the expected gross margins during
the budget period and the same raw materials price
inflation during the budget period. Budgeted gross
margins and raw material price inflation have been
determined based on past performance and
management’s expectations for the market

development.
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22. REtE NT 2R 22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
2006 2005
BT BT
HK$ HK$
REE AR ZHERA ¢ Cost of investments in associates:
— kT — Listed 4,380,728 4,380,728
—JLtm - Unlisted 6,437,881 4,898,077
JE 16 U B 18 0 7 Share of post-acquisition profits 1,487,668 4,241,961
12,306,277 13,520,766
WEBEARMBEE  Goodwil arising on acquisition
(P 3%) associates (Note) 8,899,245 7421213
21,205,522 20,941,979
rakmhnEER Market value of listed shares
ZME at the balance sheet date 5,249,687 17,098,979
Bzt - WIEEE R Bl PIS & Note: Goodwill arising on acquisition of associates

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
E@@@E}Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂu



22. REENTl 2R (B)

& M B
S

A

ROA—H

WEmE

FREAMBREE
FIRET M R B
(RHEE3)

4 B 8

R=ZA=+—H

B

ROA—H

FREXH

FREAMBREE
FIRETMH R H B
(RHEE3)

HEREABEAA
B3

R=A=+—H
A

REA—H
EERRERSR

#

w *x M

cosT
At st April

Arising on acquisitions

&t

(Continued)

Eliminated on accumulated amortisation

upon the application of HKFRS 3

(see note 3)

Eliminated on disposals

At 31st March

AMORTISATION
At st April
Charge for the year

Eliminated on accumulated amortisation upon

the application of HKFRS 3

(see note 3)

Eliminated on disposals and dilution of

an associate

At 31st March

IMPAIRMENT
At Tst April

Impairment loss recognised

At 31st March

CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31st March

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited

B B OB B

K &

~ A

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TERNF=A=1—HBIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2006 2005
BT BT

HKS HK$
49,909,341 49,840,958
4,805,112 2,580,160
(18,421,638) -
- (2,511,777)
36,292,815 49,909,341
18,421,638 10,095,133
- 8,765,277
(18,421,638) -
= (438,772)

= 18,421,638
24,066,490 -
3,327,080 24,066,490
217,393,570 24,066,490
8,899,245 7421213
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REBE QT 2R (8

B &ERBEREEBR  AARES
EEMHASEBE AR ZKREE © It
LHENR 2B HEES
7.04% 7 BhIR Rt E A BERB SR
EMET Bt EWRAH
3,327,080 Tt (ZZE T 1 F -
24,066,491 7T) 2 BIEEE
e W am R NHIRR o

DR

R-_ZERF=—A=+—Ha B&
TN T REFE - +F2EAIFEA
FHRE Y o

HEZZZXF=A=1—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

During the year ended 31st March, 2006, the
directors of the Company reviewed the carrying value
of the Group’s associates in view of the current
economic conditions. The recoverable amounts of
these associates are determined with reference to
the estimated future cash flows using a discount
rate of 7.04%. Accordingly, impairment loss of
HK$3,327,080 (2005: HK$24,066,491) was
identified and charged to the consolidated income

statement.

Until 31st March, 2005, goodwill was amortised over
its estimated useful life, ranging from five to twenty

years.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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ZEERNF=ZA=1—HBIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

22. REEE NT 2% (#)  22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(Continued)
AEEBE QAR CHBEERE2ZHT The summarised financial information in respect of
wmr the Group's associates is set out below:
2006 2005
B BT
HKS HKS$
BELE Total assets 69,559,997 68,856,756
BEAE Total liabilities (28,447,445) (19,465,395)
BERE Net assets 41,112,552 49,391,361
AEEEEHERRZ  The Group's share of net assets
BEZE of associates 12,814,655 13,520,766
Yoz Revenue 42,952,614 34,962,520
EE(BB) &M (Loss) profit for the year (487,682) 1,985,817
AEEREHERRZ The Group's share of results of associates
FERE for the year (160,284) 707,028

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
U B o7 B A B 2 A
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REBE QT 2R (8

AEBEZTEBRER

AR ZZTEERF

—A=t—HZF@EERDOT

NAEE

Name of company

HERERDA
Advance Bond Limited

R ARREERAR

Bess Dental Services
Limited

BERRERAR
Long Faith International
Limited

HelgomES (BR)
ARAR

Next Dimension Advertising
(HK.) Limited

ZR2ETREERAT
NSA Life Sciences Limited

EREREL

Form of
business structure

A1

Incorporated

s fit kL

Incorporated

s fit kL

Incorporated

AL

Incorporated

AL

Incorporated

HEZZZXF=A=1—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

Details of the Group's principal associates at 31st

March, 2006 are as follows:

ARAEEREL
BRTRAEE
aEA AR 3L 3 B ZEELA  TEEHK
Attributable
proportion of
nominal value of
issued
Place of capital indirectly
incorporation  held by the Group  Principal activities

Ei 490 HERELEREDH
Hong Kong Operation of medical
clinics in Hong Kong

BR 4% ATFEREEREA
RETERERE
Hong Kong Provision of dental card

services to dental
card holders

BB 40% HEEERERBYN
Hong Kong Operations of a medical
clinic in Hong Kong

R 400 REEE-EER
M ER
Hong Kong Provision of promotion,
advertising and artwork
production
BA 49%  REER
Hong Kong Investment holding

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
E@@@E}Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁig
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ZEERNF=ZA=1—HBIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

22. REEE NT 2% (#) 22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(Continued)
ALAABERRL
ERTRAEE
RAER ERERPA A AR L b B ZEGLE  TERE
Attributable
proportion of

nominal value of

issued
Form of Place of capital indirectly
Name of company business structure incorporation  held by the Group  Principal activities
ZE2ERBRLA Rl B 392% DHEREED
NSA Far East Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Distribution of healthcare
products
AR (M) R AR L RERE 2007% REBRIERS
Plasmagene (Note) Incorporated Cayman Provision of medical
Islands diagnostic services
EREERARAA AL B 2% REBEIERE
Union Crown International Incorporated Hong Kong Provision of medical
Limited diagnostic services
ERT-REERREERAA Rl B 50%  BERAFBERE
JFA Town Health Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Tendering for corporate

medical services

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
U BE o B OB 7 B A B 2 A
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

REEE NT) 2R (&£) 22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

KARBEREZ
BETRAEE

NEEE ERGERVA AL 3 ZEGLE  TEEH
Attributable

proportion of

nominal value of

issued
Form of Place of capital indirectly
Name of company business structure incorporation  held by the Group  Principal activities
MG (M) BRAA AL BB 49% AUEERREEY
et RRE R
Smart Vision (Asia) Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Provision of photographic
design and related
services for new-bom
babies
BEERRA Bl &k 49% EETHFERE®
Star Shine Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Trading in teeth
whitening products
Biat : EREEZRHR_ZZMEERHA Note: Plasmagene has listed its shares on the GEM Board
TNEEBRAEIZERET - of the Stock Exchange on 18th June, 2004.
E=ZRR LBERARNHASEE In the opinion of the directors, the above associates
BAEAEREATE EFRA & have a significant effect on the results or assets of
PIHMEE AR 2 ARG EHERB the Group. To give details of other associates would,
RIUK e in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars

of excessive length.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
E@@@E}Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂu
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HE-ZTTRF=F=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

wHRE
RZTEZTRF=ZA=T—HZE:FRK
BRHEIMNTX - R_FTFTAFMA
—AERBAGEREINRE

SRECENBBEEANHENRE -

23.

FLETBRAEZ WA
o BRI EER

MBS CREERTE1,999,102%8
T RREIKER R FT76.41%E %
ZARRBBEMKYL - (EERHEE
BREZER REBE_TT F=

A=Z1T—HALFEAR AEERER
RKERRA Z B RER - B IEE S
BNy FRERERE BRI

BYE=NZEERA - At - K&
BRMAERABZEHEACERN
DRERBEHFRE -

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
B o7 B A B 2 A

Unlisted, equity securities at cost

Less: Impairment loss recognised

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Investments in securities as at 31st March, 2005
are set out below. Upon the application of HKAS 39
on 1st April, 2005, investments in securities were

reclassified to available-for-sale investments.

2005
BT
HK$

4,413,142
(755,190)

3,657,952

The carrying value of unlisted securities included an
amount of HK$1,999,102 representing 76.41%
interest in Wisesure Limited, a company incorporated
in Hong Kong and is engaged in provision of medical
consultation services. During the year ended 31st
March, 2006, the Group exchanged its right of
shareholders, including the right to control, profit
sharing rights and voting right, of Wisesure Limited,
for a fixed income from an independent third party.
Accordingly, the Group’s entire interest in Wisesure

Limited was reclassified as investment in securities.
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THERE

R-BERF=A=+-RZTHE

KEBIE comprise:
2006
BT
HKS$
FELTRAES - KA Unlisted equity securities, at cost 4,413,142
W B RRIBEEE Less: Impairment loss recognised (755,190)
3,657,952

b ERERRNIE LR AE
HZERE - RRETDNEHEERRK
AEREE IR AEQAFE
it 2 BEBK - NRBEFARA
FETEAEMTE -

mBWE - BERR
BExftzize

RZZETZERF=ZA=1+—8 ~KH
RBEE T EEBREREALARK
BRM{EZE - HEEREEHR
BfFE45 ©

24,

25.

HE-TZTXF=F=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale investments as at 31st March, 2006

The above unlisted investments represent
investments in unlisted equity securities. They are
measured at cost less impairment at each balance
sheet date because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the fair values

cannot be reliably measured.

DEPOSITS PAID ON
ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

At 31st March, 2006, the deposits are paid by the
Group in connection with the acquisition of certain
advanced medical equipment for future expension.
The related capital commitments are set out in note
45.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
B O/ B B B KR A R 2 7
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26. 78 26. INVENTORIES

2006 2005
BT BT
HK$ HK$
£ )| Pharmaceutical supplies 3,162,642 2,026,664
BREERME Healthcare equipments 540,243 600,660
FRA® Dental materials and supplies 165,812 199,183
BRARLE Isotope for medical uses 262,140 236,348

DM R EELE Cardiology and peripheral vascular related
BRSO F IR surgical equipment 9,651,952 5,721,136
13,782,789 8,783,991

27. EWER K HAMEWRF 27. TRADE AND OTHER

15 RECEIVABLES
2006 2005
BT BT
HK$ HK$
U R 3R (M 3 a) Trade receivables (note a) 21,182,175 15,408,913
g Deposits 11,413,337 4,319,307
H i W R Other receivables 10,591,536 5,272,258
B FIE Prepayments 6,373,095 2,102,922
49,560,143 27,103,400

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
U BE o B OB 7 B A B 2 A
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27. EWER KR HEMEWRF 27. TRADE AND OTHER

I8 (&) RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Hat - Notes:

a. AEBETHESGEPATHES a. The Group allows its trade customers with an
BOTRAZFEAHEER - RER average credit period of 60 days to 240 days. The
ZEWERERRDTOT ¢ aged analysis of trade receivables at the balance

sheet date is as follow:

2006 2005

B BT

HK$ HK$

0—60H 0 - 60 days 11,249,713 9,482,209

61H—120H 61 - 120 days 3,964,888 3,439,340

121H—180H 121 - 180 days 2,998,540 2,884,798

181H —240H 181 - 240 days 3,546,680 1,335,794

241H—360H 241 - 360 days 888,366 424317

3618 E Over 361 days 830,187 -

23,478,374 17,566,458

o RERREESR Less: Impairment loss on bad and doubtful debts (2,296,199) (2,157,545)

21,182,175 15,408,913

b. 2N 55 B M RR AR B LA PR R IR B b. The Group's trade and other receivables included

$58,632,9068 T (Z T T A F - HK$8,632,906 (2005: HK$7,667,996) that

7,667,996 L) EEEBBERUA derminated in RMB8,923,823 (2005:
R#8923,823 L (ZTZTHF : A RMBS8,128,044) at the balance sheet date.

[R#8,128,0447T) 58 2 5KA -

EERAE REEXF=-A=+—8" In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of the

AEBZREKREREEMEBERFIIEZ AF Group's trade and other receivables at 31st March, 2006
BEAEEREEES approximate to the corresponding carrying amount.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
E@@@E}Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁig
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R_EERER_EERF=/=+
—HAZRBEREER 2ENREARKRE
KEERE RNZZEENF=ZA=+—

(EREEEI

R-ZETZRFEF=ZF=1+—"8 &%

EREWBE AR REBEZ Rt BB
5,298,658 Tt (ZFEE R F

5,298,658/ 7T) ©

29. EREREDQTZF

FRBERERRZTER
B RRBERERRZ
RBZREESR

BUFERE QR ZKALEET - %

RBEREBRER
EERR R-TETRE=ZRA=1—
B ZERENQFEEEEREE
BRE -

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
U B o7 B A B 2 A
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&t

28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM

g 29.

Amounts due from investees

from investees

ASSOCIATES

The amounts at 31st March, 2006 and 2005 are
unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on
demand. The fair values of the amounts at 31st
March, 2006 approximate to the corresponding
carrying amounts.

At 31st March, 2006, the balance includes
accumulated alllowances for amounts due from

associates of HK$5,298,658 (2005: HK$5,298,658).

AMOUNTS DUE FROM

Less: Impairment loss for amounts due

INVESTEES
2006 2005
BT BT
HK$ HKS
1,221,705 1,213,267
(538,355) (347,565)
683,350 865,702

The amounts due from investees are unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the
amounts at 31st March, 2006 approximate to the

corresponding carrying amounts.
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BUREBREALRE

R

ZEZERNF=A=1—HBIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

30. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED

PARTIES
2006 2005
BT BT
HK$ HK$

Dr. Cho, Chan, Fung & Dr. Cho, Chan, Fung &

Associates (ff5F a) Associates (note a) 4,058,265 3,603,522
Origin Limited (Fff #b) Origin Limited (note b) - 182,939
REZERERAR (Mo Weissford Development Ltd. (note c) - 480,000
Chan Kin Ho, Bosco (Fff 3£ d) Chan Kin Ho, Bosco (note d) - 435,972
Cheng Ping Fai, Daniel (fffzd)  Cheng Ping Fai, Daniel (note d) - 435,972
Helix Overseas Holdings Helix Overseas Holdings Limited - 1,215,000

Limited (fff &t e) (note e)

Kingdom Hill Limited (Fi5Fe) ~ Kingdom Hill Limited (note e) - 990,000

First Oriental Nuclear First Oriental Nuclear Medicine Limited

Medicine Limited (B 1) (note f) 437,100 -

4,495,365 7,343,405

B st Notes:

(a) Dr. Cho, Chan, Fung & AssouatesZ (a) The partners of Dr. Cho, Chan, Fung & Associates
ABEABAEE I BEBE are employee-doctors of the Group.

(b) RZEZERF=ZA=+—HAAXR (b) A substantial shareholder of the Company at 31st
AXERR - March, 2005.

(©) BETE BeHEAEREER @) A company in which Dr. Cho Kwai Chee, Mr. Cho
SEBZA ﬂ%$iﬁﬁ@§¢%ﬁ}§ Kam Luk and Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin are directors
wiEm o NFERN - BBz EaEA and have beneficial interests. The maximum
480,000/ T ° balance during the year was HK$480,000.

(d) RNF) 2 IEDREME R RIAAE & (d) A shareholder of the Company’s non-wholly owned
ERERABZIRE ° subsidiary, Pacific Medical (Holding) Company

Limited.

(e) RARZHETEMBRABEER (e) A shareholder of the Company’s non-wholly owned
MEEBAERAF ([REBER subsidiary, First Oriental Medical Technology Group
B ZIRE - Limited (“First Oriental”).

® BEBREE(BEE])RAZR 0) A company in which Dr. Yeung Wah Hin, Alex (“Dr.
ZEERRKRRE - EEQ%JTF% Fﬁ Yeung”) is a director and shareholder. Dr. Yeung
A2 3k 2 & M E A 7 First Oriental is also a director of First Oriental Cycloton Limited,
Cycloton LimitedZ T % = NF R - a company's non-wholly owned subsidiary. The
EHZREREA437,1008 T © maximum balance during the vyear was

HK$437,100.

mHRSEER . 28 N 78 ZESkE The balances are unsecured, interest free and repayable

= o ﬁ%?ﬂé RZEERNF=A= on demand. In the opinion of the directors, the fair value

+—H - ZFRBZATVEREEERE of the amounts at 31st March, 2006 approximate to the

FREEEE - corresponding carrying amounts.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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3. B FENHWEXRD 31.
B R 2 KHE
SEREAEER R RAREL
&=
i% E E/\—7 = /\E'E ﬁ +_
H ZEHRBCATFEEEBEAT
BEE -
32. ER—BESENHE 32.

BIEARGHIE16BREZEERD
RB/ERTREBERHINMT

BES/BRBE ERBRH
Director/officer Terms of loan
BREEE BERREE
(B=) ARBREER
Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet Non-secured and
(Director) non-interest bearing,
repayable on demand
EER R-ZBERF=RA=*+—
BzRFPEEEMEERTERES

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE o B OB 7 B A B 2 A
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THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO
MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the
amounts at 31st March, 2006 approximate to the

corresponding carrying amounts.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A DIRECTOR

Directors’ current accounts/loans to officers disclosed
pursuant to section 161B of the Companies

Ordinance are as follows:

R-ZZEARF R-ZBZREF
ZA=t-H mA—H FRRS
2R 2R AMEESHE
Balance Balance Maximum amount
at at outstanding
31.3.2006 1.4.2005 during the year
BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$

950,000 - 950,000

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the
above balance at 31st March, 2006 approximate to

the corresponding carrying amount.
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

33. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR

TRADING

2006

BT

HKS$
~FE FAIR VALUE
BEREZ EHRAES Listed equity securities in Hong Kong 22,929,500
FIEBEBERAZS 2 A FETIREA] The fair values of the equity securities held for
NEEZ PR 2 T EBRES] - trading are determined based on the quoted market

B ARITERK
SHBRERNGE T ARE 2 RA
R TE - RERE ARG RS
BERERER  BEREARDE
B o

ZEFENT1.50EZ4.10E 2 F £
HE BEMARTERAEREEEHA
BEE®EL RZTETRF=A=+
— B ROTFRZATFEEHEER
HEES -

34.

bid prices available on the Stock Exchange.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

The amount represents deposits pledged to lenders
to secure facilities granted to the Group. The deposits
have been pledged to secure short-term other
borrowings and are therefore classified as current

assets.

The deposits carry interest rate at ranges, from
1.50% to 4.10% per annum. The pledged bank
deposits will be released upon the settlement of
relevant borrowings. The fair value of bank deposits
at 31st March, 2006 approximates to the

corresponding carrying amount.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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35. |ITHEHRRRE 35. BANK BALANCES AND CASH
RITHEBRERBSREAESERE 2R Bank balances and cash comprises cash held by the
® - ARRIEA A=A AR Z Group and bank balances that are interest-bearing
BERENEIEF B ZIRITHER © % at an effective interest rate of 3.2% per annum and
ERBEZEEELQATEES - have original maturity of three months or less. The

carrying amount of these approximates to their fair

value.

36. ENERFEEME[NF 36. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
18

2006 2005
BT BT

HKS$ HK$

FERTERRR (BT 5Ea) Trade payables (note a) 18,127,828 12,945,416
H b FE S 5RIB Other payables 5,507,406 514,645
EETE R Accruals 15,274,119 19,811,642
38,909,353 33,271,703

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
U BE o B OB 7 B A B 2 A
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36. FE YRR R H fth B =X
H ()

Hrat

REFEB ZBNERRER S0
™

0—60H 0 - 60 days

61H —120H 61 — 120 days
121H —240H 121 — 240 days
2418 E Over 241 days

EERR AEEENEREEAM
ENFRER-_ZZREF=ZA=1+—
RzAVEREBERKEERS -

HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

36. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

a. The aged analysis of trade payables at the balance

sheet date is as follows:

2006 2005

7 TT BT

HK$ HK$

6,607,492 10,930,696

10,475,403 1,968,428

- 46,292

1,044,933 -

18,127,828 12,945,416

b. In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of

the Group's trade and other payables at 31st
March, 2006 approximate to the corresponding

carrying amount.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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ZEERNF=ZA=1—HBIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

4= [+
37. |ITRHMEE 37. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
2006 2005
BT BT
HK$ HK$
RITEX Bank overdraft 793,180 -
HiER Other loan 240,000 -
RITE R Bank loans 61,575,444 7,116,023
62,608,624 7,116,023
DR Analysed as:
A Secured 26,822,559 7,116,023
fm 3K Unsecured 35,786,065 -
62,608,624 7,116,023
AR TIFHEREZEE : Carrying amount repayable:
—FR Within one year 37,487,642 602,039
BF In the second year 1,801,359 622,558
F= In the third year 1,909,915 644,493
FEF In the fourth year 2,024,378 667,216
HiBhF Over the five years 19,385,330 4,579,717
62,608,624 7,116,023
W BRERREBAEMENA  Less: Amount due within one year
R —F N E|H included under
Z & current liabilities (37,487,642) (602,039)
R—FRrRIB &% Amount due after one year 25,120,982 6,513,984

A
i)

BAEFERRTERBE - 78
BREBENEH25EE35EFHE -

The Group has variable-rate borrowings on bank loan

which carry interest at prime rate less 2.5% to 3.5%.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE o B OB 7 B A B 2 A
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RITREMEER (&)

AEBEEEZER
K)EEMT

FIE (F%RE BF

HEZZZXF=A=1—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

37. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are
also equal to contracted interest rates) on the

Group's borrowings are as follows:

2006 2005
BB A & Effective interest rate:
FREE Variable-rate borrowings 2.71EZE5.7E 245EZE35E

HMERSEER 28 REERE

[

Fald

EXFEREBEM R EEEELE
WEEEB SN EZEE R

2.7% to 5.7%  2.45% to 3.5%

The other loan is unsecured, interest free and

repayable on demand.

Included in above is borrowings attributable to the
THMT Group that are denominated in currencies

other than its functional currency.

AR

In Renminbi

RZEEZERF=ZA=+—H As at 31st March, 2006 35,786,065
R-_ZEERF=A=+—H As at 31st March, 2005 -

FRN - AEEDRINRIT R EFREE
BEREEESZSRBERGEHNERN
21,450,000/ 7T } 37,855,531/8 7T °
FIERIEDE ARBNEBREYME R
FEREBERNMRER S

During the year, the Group obtained new loans from
banks and upon the consolidation of THMT Group in
the amount of HK$21,450,000 and HK$37,855,531
respectively. The proceeds were used to finance the
acquisition of investment properties and operation of

THMT Group.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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38. EXEMIEEE 38. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
AREBREAERZETERLERIES The following are the major deferred tax liabilities/
&/ (BE) REZEHMOT: (assets) recognised by the Group and movements

thereon for the year:

NERERER
EftRENZ
Accelerated
tax
depreciation and AEERE
revaluation  HEEE  Alowance
of investment Tax  for bad and &it
properties losses  doubtful debts Total
D B BT B
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
A5H THE GROUP
RZFENEMA-A At Tst April, 2004 1,265,372 (485,521) - 779,851
(FFA) HEEERA (Credit) charge to income for the year (350019) 429288 - 79,269
R-2ZRE=A=+-8 At 315t March, 2005 915353 (56,233) - 859120
YENBAE Acquisition of subsidiaries 655,628 - - 655,628
ma (GFA) %A Charge to (Credit) income for the year 3724100 (1100936)  (139570) 2,483,594
RZFERE-A=T-H At 31st March, 2006 5295081 (1,157169)  (139,570) 3,998,342
R-ZETZRF=ZA=+—8 K%£H At 31st March, 2006, the Group has unused tax
H31,657,141 8 L (Z T HF - losses of HK$31,657,141 (2005: HK$38,382,087)
38,382,087 7T) A B A B IEE R A A available for offset against future profits. A deferred
TER I B @EN - B3 R86,612,394 tax asset has been recognised in respect of such
BILT(ZZFZTRF : 321,33187T) 2 losses of HK$6,612,394 (2005: HK$321,331).
BIEERAREEHIAEE
M DA SRR B AR 208 A AOR - 3 No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
ThER T AR IEE1825,044,7478 L (& of the remaining tax losses of HK$25,044,747
T4 : 38,060,756 70) RIEILER (2005: HK$38,060,756) due to the unpredictability
HEE WA ERMAEE - of future profit streams and may be carried forward
indefinitely.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
E ;E‘é jied o7 B A B 2 A
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EEXEHREEET (&)

RZZEERNF=ZA=1+—0H ' £5H
St FE Uk BR 3k I 17 B E R R B R AR
Z A HR E B = %8 R 5,633,960% 7T
(ZZTZTHF : 1,703,491 7T) ° @R
R TE T A B AR TR B AT A VR 88
AMBYERERE RUERATNRY
REEERECEHIBEE -

ARKRES
R-ZZRF_F-H  AAFHE—
ERUBRERETLEEHZE - MB
N8B = PR & % i 32,000,0007 7T
Z25EAMRES - TRRESFKZ
TTLFHHP - R_TTRFEMA+
—H - EE1TAE 4 %32,000,000%
T2 ARRES o ATRRES AT IRE
& B &A%0.0378 7T (7] THE) B A
RAREBER  BHERBAEATEER
HRREHFZFITANREZIHA (ZTT
+F WA+ H)AT90H WA B A
B WMESREER  AER=F
ZLFMA+HIREERELD - 7825
B¥REEsz=A=+—BRALA=
+THEEFHBEIA -

38.

39.

HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
(Continued)

At 31st March, 2006, the Group has deductible
temporary differences associated with specific
provision on trade receivables and inventory of
HK$5,633,960 (2005: HK$1,703,491). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary difference as it is uncertain
that taxable profit will be available against which

the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 2nd February, 2005, the Company entered into
a placing agreement with an independent placing
agent in relation to the placing of up to
HK$32,000,000 2.5% convertible bonds due 2007,
to independent third parties. On 11th April, 2005,
an aggregate principal amount of HK$32,000,000
convertible bonds were issued. The convertible
bonds can be converted into ordinary shares in the
Company at a conversion price of HK$0.037 per
share, subject to adjustment, at the option of the
bondholders, at any time between the date of issue
of the convertible bonds and 90 days prior to the
maturity date on 10th April 2007. If the bonds have
not been converted, they will be redeemed on 10th
April, 2007 at par. Interest of 2.5% will be paid half
yearly in arrears on 31st March and 30th September

in each year.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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39. AIRES (&) 39. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
32,000,000/ T 2 2. 5B AT R B 52 The HK$32,000,000 2.5% convertible bonds were
R-ZEZTRAFWAZ+_HEZZTZ fully converted from 22nd April, 2005 to 23rd May,
AFRAZ+T=AENBESFFEA 2005 by 11 bondholders. A total of 864,864,864
BEER FRARBERETAEH shares were allotted and issued during the year.

864,864,864% I 17 °

RZZEZRFNA=+TH xR EH On 30th August, 2005, the Company entered into
—EBBIUREREITLS —MHEE W another placing agreement with an independent
HEBEUBNEAERBITIR_ZEZ placing agent for the purpose of arranging
+&F / ZTT N\FHHZ25E TR subscribers for the issue of 2.5% convertible bonds
BEELZHRBA ASBEBEHZLE due 2007/2008, on a best effort basis, up to an
80,000,000 7T (D AMHL) « R== aggregate principal amount of HK$80,000,000 in
TRFZA=+—8B RZ-ZZEZLHF two tranches. As at 31st March 2006, “Tranche 1
FIHi 2 A" & #8586 540,000,000/ 7T 2 Bonds", representing 2.5% convertible bonds due
25BA#HKRESR ([B—#HEF)ER 2007 up to an aggregate principal amount of
HET HE_ZZEXXF_A=-1+N HK$40,000,000 had been issued in full. Up to 28th
BRL TEERERBARBR_-Z February 2006, no subscribers have been procured
TNFHHRARATREBR S E to subscribe for the “Tranche 2 Bonds’, representing
40,000,000/ 7T 2 2.5[E A] # f& (& % 2.5% convertible bonds due 2008 up to an
(IEZ#EF] - BEESHE & aggregate principal amount of HK$40,000,000.
“HESFZRES K RRE According to the placing agreement, the placing for

b BHE —MESF W EEIT - the Trache 2 Bonds was ceased and terminated and

thus the whole Tranche 2 Bonds were not issued.

—HESF IR REFR0.105ETT The Tranche 1 Bonds can be converted into ordinary
(AITHAB)ERSAQAEER & shares in the Company at a conversion price of
FRBATEERITBRBRESEITH HK$0.105 per share, subject to adjustment, at the
HZEIHA (ZEZTEFAAZTN option of the bondholders, at any time between the
H)AT90R AEMKEARE L - W& date of issue of the convertible bonds and 90 days
HAREHEL AR T LFNA prior to the maturity date on 28th September, 2007.
Zt+N\BREEERL - FE2.5FHR If the bonds have not been converted, they will be
BF2AAAZTHRER+ZA=+—H redeemed on 28th September, 2007 at par. Interest
BEFOEZA - of 2.5% will be paid half yearly in arrears on 30th

June and 31st December in each year.
Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
% ; JE o2 R B B 24 &
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39. IMKRES (&)

ARRESBESERRAWNES
Do RERBERBGFERNEI2R (2
MITA:  #ERZ)(GFERMTE
3 AMRESRTDSRAAEBERRKRAE
B o RABDBIBERAAN 2 [T
EHFRAFHE] 251 - 32,000,000/ 7T
BEHFEZBEBOIRE-—HESFZER
&SR A7.77%%9.400% °

AERAMBEFAER D 2 ZEH

HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

39. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The convertible bonds contain two components,
liability and equity elements. Upon the application
of HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation (see Note 3 for details), the convertible
bonds were split between the liability and equity
elements. The equity element is presented under
“convertible bonds equity reserve” in equity. The
effective interest rates of the liability component of
HK$32,000,000 bonds and Tranche 1 Bonds is
7.77% and 9.40% respectively.

The movement of the liability component of the

M convertible bonds for the year is set out below:
2006 2005
BT BT
HK$ HK$
FOzaBEHn Liability component at the beginning
of the year - -
BRI RRES Issue of convertible bonds 68,564,000 19,000,000
B R BB Less: Transaction costs (4.642,129) -
MERx (M&10) Interest charge (Note 10) 1,825,970 (90,411)
B F B Interest paid (48,903) (90,411)
HRoBmRRR Conversion of convertible notes (29,006,726)  (19,000,000)

BfE Liability at the end of the year

BEERE RZEERNF=ZA=1+—
Az AFEEHEHBEEREEAEMRLD -

36,692,212 —

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the
amounts at 31st March, 2006 approximate to the

corresponding carrying amount.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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40. BB &

ERTRER

RZZZEMFNAE—BER
EECOIBITZEBR
TEBRRES (KTa)

RZEERE=A=1T—H

SREEOIELZ EAK
TEABkES (MEb)
BiEik (Mistc)

R-_EEANF=ZA=1+—H
BREEOIETLZEAR

40. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each
at Tst April, 2004,
31st March, 2005 and 2006

Issued and fully paid:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
at 1st April, 2004

Exercise of convertible bonds (note a)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
at 31st March, 2005
Exercise of convertible bonds (note b)

Issue of new shares (note c)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
at 31st March, 2006

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
E ;E‘é jied o7 B A B 2 A

BEEE BE
Number of

shares Amount

BT

HK$

20,000,000,000 200,000,000

1,249,182,000 12,491,820

497,614,604 4,976,146

1,746,796,604 17,467,966

864,864,864 8,648,649

2,384,932,060 23,849,320

4,996,593,528 49,965,935
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40. BRAS (4

Wi

Eﬁz TERRAF=A=t—BIFEZE
HXZKK@;ZDT

(a) ZEEMF+—AZ+MA AR
AR EHaE - MBLE = HE#
TR & 4% & 51 /19,000,000
7 7T (8 41£9,500,000/%8 7T) 2 7] i
REH - IR ESIEFBESE
BY¥FIMAFE - RBEBREER
BMOMAREEETEATZABS
FrET R SRR FH U (E - %
HEEZRSE °

BREFR_ZTNF+=-AAH
17 YR -_ZETRF—AT+NAB
E-TZTRF_A—HBHEERER
0.042F L2 0.0518 L 2 AR ER
AR o AL - :.,\248 901,248
R Th AR BRI ZEE M F
)El:Jr/‘*\Elﬁgﬁzr}xiﬂikéi
EERER MBERMEE &E
7 °

ZHEFRE
?”‘ﬁ W
on.ozs/%mio.ow/&yzzmﬁf‘i
BEBRE A A& H
248,713,356 & 0 TR AN A R A
ZEERF-ANARITZBEE
ARG FEBER 2T EREMEL
BN EAT o

WEEBEZFBHRAEARRES
TNF+—A -+ MHEEZZTZMN
FH_AZ-t+HPRREBEZ MR
WK o

HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

40. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

The movements of the ordinary share capital for the year
ended 31st March, 2005 were as follows:

(a) On 24th November, 2004, the Company entered
into the placing agreement to issue convertible
bonds of an aggregate principal amount of
HK$19,000,000 to independent third parties in 2
tranches (each of HK$9,500,000). The convertible
bond borne interest at the rate of 5% per annum
payable half yearly in arrears. The conversion price
is subject to the average of the closing price per
share of the Company as quoted on the Stock
Exchange for the 10 consecutive trading days
immediately preceding the date of conversion, or
the nominal value of the share, whichever is higher.

The Tranche 1 bond was issued on 9th December,
2004 and converted in full during the period from
19th January, 2005 to 1st February, 2005 at
conversion price ranged from HK$0.042 to
HK$0.051 per share. Accordingly, a total of
248,901,248 shares were allotted and issued
pursuant under the general mandate granted to
the directors at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 26th July, 2004.

The Tranche 2 bond was issued on 20th January,
2005 and converted in full during the period from
1st February, 2005 to 16th February, 2005 at
conversion price ranged from HK$0.038 to
HK$0.039 per share. A total of 248,713,356 shares
were allotted and issued accordingly pursuant the
specific mandate granted to the directors at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 6th January, 2005.

Details of the above were set out in the Company's
announcement and circular dated 24th November,
2004 and 20th December, 2004 respectively.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A

W



142 | ANNUAL REPORT 2006 = & 2 % & 1

W

= A M B W %

Mt &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZTTRF=F=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

40. A& (&

Hiat : (&)

HE_ZZRFZA=1T—HILEFEZ%
BERAEESHMT

(b) A 32,000,000/ 7T 2 A [
HFEERSRRREBR -

(0 R-TEREFA=+—0 B8
LA B & B AR F E Z R ®Broad
Idea International Limited#s & 2 4%
NAFKk®EEONETZ
2,384,932,0600% f% 17 T & 32 L A
KREEELRH  BRIEER S
0.03787L * RARAKRMNZZE
TRERA=T—HAEBIMAT®R
W ESR0. 128 LI E469% o

RIEFA B 2 RME W - Broad Idea
International Limited A & % 0.0377%
T2 E R E K QA A
2,384,932,0600 & EE0.01E T
ZHEBRD o T RIEE AREEA
NAFEIINEEES - ZEHRMOHE
BER-ZZTERFAA=Z+HET
ZAEARBREFINAGRTESZZ
—BEERT WEAMEBITR
MEZSFEZEREMA -

FRABTZABRNDEMA T @Y HE
ERZRAEBREBERFMA

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
B o7 B A B 2 A

40. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

The movements of the ordinary share capital for the year
ended 31st March, 2006 were as follows:

(b)

During the year, HK$32,000,000 of the convertible
bonds was converted into the ordinary shares of
the Company.

On 31st May, 2005, arrangement were made for
a private placement to independent private
investors of 2,384,932,060 shares of HK$0.01
each in the Company held by Broad lIdea
International Limited, a substantial shareholder of
the Company, in cash at a price of HK$ 0.037 per
share representing a discount of approximately
69% to the closing price of HK$ 0.12 per share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 31st May, 2005.

Pursuant to a subscription agreement of on 20th
April, 2005, Broad lIdea International Limited
subscribed for 2,384,932,060 new shares of
HK$0.01 each in the Company at a price of
HK$0.037 per share. The proceeds were used to
provide additional working capital for the Company.
These new shares were issued under the general
mandate granted to the directors at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 30th May, 2005 and rank pari passu with other
shares in issue in all respects.

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu

with the then existing ordinary shares in all respects.
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

1. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company's previous and existing share option
schemes were adopted on 20th September, 2000
(the "2000 Scheme”) and on 24th April, 2002 (the
“2002 Scheme"), respectively, for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and

eligible employees.

Pursuant to the 2000 Scheme, the Company might
grant options to the directors and the employees of
the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for the
shares in the Company, subject to a maximum of
10% of the nominal value of the issued share capital.
No share options were granted under the 2000

Scheme.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting, the Company terminated the 2000
Scheme and adopted the 2002 Scheme, which will
expire on 23rd April, 2011, the Company may grant
options to the eligible persons fall within the
definition prescribed in the 2002 Scheme including
directors, the employees and consultants etc. of the
Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for the
shares in the Company at a consideration of HK$1

for each lot of share options granted.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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41. BIRESTE &)

Iz BIREANTR

ZBRHEE RZETE
ZEEITRARZ10% ¢

BT 2 EMMRD -

BRTEEDHAR

Z A HAT A

_\

W ERERRE

BE—ZEZF

TR B2 1% °

HE-FTAF=A=+-ALMF
Mo EmIRE =TT FHEAAR

RER/EERHBKE -

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
B o7 B A B 2 A

2 B HRE21
BAES- TEE 2 BRERNED
FHREREBHETEERE B S
IR FLAITRE - iR 2 AR &
BB A R TR
He T B FE R IR
—ET FE AR EREITER

RAEFEET
VHRADABARBABRPRIEZERZ
& % A
Bz FHEmEMER ZESE -

—FEEAmEeERKER
BEFERZBHEE  TEBBIR
BT _FiEERS BT RAE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(Continued)

Options granted should be accepted within 21 days
from the offer date. Options granted are exercisable
during the period commencing on the date of grant
and expiring on the date ten years after the date of
grant. The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted shall not exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time excluding any shares issued upon
the exercise of options granted pursuant to the 2002

Scheme.

The exercise price per share is determined by the
directors of the Company, and shall be at least the
higher of the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of grant and the average closing price
of the shares for the five business days immediately

preceding the date of grant.

The total number of shares in respect of which may
be granted to an eligible employee under the 2002
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
aggregate number of shares for the time being

issued and issuable under the 2002 Scheme.

No share options were granted to the directors/
employees of the Company under the 2002 Scheme
during the two years ended 31st March, 2006

respectively.
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42. WHB B B 2 |
TR ARBUBETHERAR
EwT

@ RZZTTRFWA—B A%

ERBEARAF([RE]) 2

2 MR 33.33%3 0 &

66.66% ' X {& /& 200,000/

T o RERBBRELE M

BEDH O BAWERRBAS
BEE AR -

b) R-BEAE=A=+—8 -
7N % E 5 Pherson Limited
([Pherson]) z # % H133%38% N
£69%  f{E /& 990,000/8
7T ° Phersonft EMEKRE - @
TREERETEE ZHBEDR
=

HEZZZXF=A=1—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

42. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year, the Group acquired certain

subsidiaries, details of which are as follows:

(@)  On 1st April, 2005, the Group increased its
interest in Silver Ascot Limited (“Silver Ascot”)
from 33.33% to 66.66%, at a consideration
of HK$200,000. Silver Ascot engaged in the
operation of a medical clinic in Hong Kong
and is previously treated as an associate of

the Group.

(b)  On 31st March, 2006, the Group increased
its interest in Pherson Limited (“Pherson”)
from 339 to 69%, at a consideration of
HK$990,000. Pherson engaged in the
property investment and is previously treated

as an associate of the Group.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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42. WIEKB D (&)

(0 RZEETRF-_HAZ+Z=H-
N5 B R B B A B A B (R B
RFAERETAR) T2
60,000,000/ 7T AI 2 R (& % ©
HERAIRRES  BLAE
E R EREBER B HEAS5.79%
R

(d) REEEBEEMGT - BAA T
f# .2 60,000,000 7T A] #2 i% &
FRAEERENRRBERR
R BERRE KhERE
B A R EERE o R
HBAKE 2 REMBRRE
RRBERBRZHMBERRER
BEBGHERNE2TRES -
FrESEEARGIRRS - 4&
B WARBRIRGEAERY
i BRIEAMRRES c ARA
EEERTENRERBRERRK
WHEARAEZ  RiEBEER
BRABEZEBERR_TT N
F=ZRA=+t—BZBEFED

RELERRER -

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
B o7 B A B 2 A

42. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

©

On 22nd February, 2006, the Group
subscribed a convertible bond amounted to
HK$60,000,000 issued by THMT, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. The convertible bond, if converted,
will give the Group 55.79% voting power

over THMT.

Based on the management's assessment, the
current exercisable convertible bond of
HK$60,000,000 provides the Group the
potential voting rights in THMT which in turn
provide the Group the ability to control THMT.
In preparing the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, financial statements
of THMT was consolidated in accordance to
HKAS 27. All the intra-group transactions,
balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation, including the
convertible bond. Since the Group has no
present equity interest in THMT, the results
for the period and the net liabilities of THMT
as at 31st March, 2006 was allocated to the

minority interests.



=
= &

ANNUAL REPORT 2006 = & & X F F #

B B W %

Mt A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

42. WIBKB QA (&)

42. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
2006 2005
BT BT
HKS$ HK$
FrAE BEFHE - Net liabilities assumed:
"wEYE Investment properties 4,000,000 -
ME - BEKEE Property, plant and equipment 678,579 1,130,975
BB ERE Prepaid lease payment 1,316,000 -
TFE Inventories 31,912 7,314,202
JE Uk B 2k &2 E b & Y 7 38 Trade and other receivables 702,329 5,949,207
RITRBE &R Bank and cash balances 10,377,136 5,087,424
FIELERE Investment held for trading 16,170,000 -
FE A BR 3k & E b fB 5 3k 38 Trade and other payables (4,856,529) (14,231,807)
RITRHEMEE Bank and other borrowings (37,855,531) -
LEH R EREE K Loan from minority shareholders (200,000) -
IR RE T IR Deferred tax (655,628) -
(10,291,732) 5,250,001
DEIR RS Minority interests 12,454,791 (2,303,176)
FEEMRKEER Interest acquired in prior year
R AN — H & recognised as interest
NG X in an associate (1,232,660) -
RS Goodwill 261,585 26,680,169
1,191,984 29,626,994
AR Satisfied by:
BENREKE Cash consideration paid 1,191,984 27,500,000
W i B 2 AB A B 2 Related expense paid on acquisition - 2,126,994
1,191,984 29,626,994
BRAKBHBARZ Analysis of net inflow of cash and
LekReEEER cash equivalents in connection with
MAFED - the acquisition of subsidiaries:
BENRERE Cash consideration paid 1,191,984 29,626,994
Fri iR 1T 4582 3R &  Bank balances and cash acquired (10,377,136) (5,087,424)
EREWENRERFZ Net cash (inflow) outflow in respect
Be ORA) M558 of the acquisition of subsidiaries (9,185,152) 24,539,570

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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42. WIEKB D (&)

BE-_TT F-A=-1+—BLEE
NBEZHBARAASEBE 2 S %5
RAEBZFERMND B &K
50105108 T BB 2 731,760/8 7T 2
FEEE -

7

BE-_TTRAF-A=-1+—BLEE
NBEZHBARAASBE 2 S %
RAEBz2ELEEED TR
50,306,819/ JL & &t &2 7,057,000/ 7T
Z Wz e

WMKBER-_TETAFHNA—HBRE
B Ma A 9 Bl /£232,986,9997 7T &
23,810,4448 70 o LB ZEERHE M
AR T—EaEREMEEDE N
TTHFEWNA—BERK ' AEEHA
BESB2EEBRES  TTRIE
RARERZTEA -

fa - AaftRPRIZEE (AE) ZIREE
HERWEE 2 A FEBE -

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
B w7
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42. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

The subsidiaries acquired during the year ended 31st
March, 2006 contributed HK$5,010,510 to the Group's
turnover and loss for the year of HK$731,760 to the
Group's profit for the year.

The subsidiaries acquired during the year ended 31st
March, 2005 contributed HK$50,306,819 to the
Group's turnover and a gain of HK$7,057,000 to

the Group's loss from operations.

Had the acquisitions been completed on 1st April,
2005, the Group's turnover and profit for the year
from continuing operation would have been
HK$232,986,999 and HK$23,810,444 respectively.
This proforma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily indicative of the turnover
and results of the Group that would actually have
been impacted had the acquisitions been completed
on 1st April, 2005, nor is it intended to be a

projection of future results.

Note: The carrying amount of assets (liabilities) before
combination approximates fair values as at the date

of acquisition.
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43. ACQUISITION OF MEDICAL AND

DENTAL PRACTICES

RZBERF-ARZZEERFZ During January 2006 and February 2006, the Group
R r&EH L/(fﬁ/fﬁ{ﬁﬂ 380,000/%8 acquired certain medical and dental practices at a
TS FREE BRI o cash consideration of HK$11,380,000.
2006 2005
B JT BT
HKS$ HK$
PR RE Z EEF1E Net assets acquired:
mE - WERZE Property, plant and equipment 607,772 -
rE Inventories 325,354 -
933,126 -
Bk Goodwill 10,446,874 -
AR Satisfied by:
e Cash 11,380,000 -

ETE%FKEIZ¥%“ C AEEWEE
THERBREENBEENMELNAR

KR Fﬁ BEDERARZEDH
Z T EMAKFEREE ZHERE

REBBHEZZ£ERAEFEARN - AT
BeABRINDHALRERFAE
¥ 8 Non 9 5 # 2K 3,563,080/ 7T &
532,135 L HEL ©

WREENR-_ZEZRAFNA —HB%
B ARBFERNRFEBERLEER &%
B8 Mo M 8 9 Bl £236,395,570/8 70 &
21,062,592 70 © L1 EZ & RHEHH
BrH T—EREBEMEEEN =

For the expansion of the Group's business, the Group
acquired certain medical and dental practices with
experienced doctors and nurses. Goodwill is
attributable to the anticipated profitability from these

clinics and the skill and experience of employees.

The medical and dental practices acquired
contributed HK$3,563,080 and HK$532,135 to the
Group's turnover and profit for the year, respectively,
during the year between the dates of acquisition
and the balance sheet date.

Had the acquisitions been completed on 1st April,
2005, the Group's turnover and profit for the year
from continuing operations would have been
HK$236,395,570 and HK$21,062,592 respectively.
This proforma information is for illustrative purposes

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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43. WIBABRITED T (@)

TETERFMA—HEK - AEEFA
HMERBEXBRES - TIHIE
RARREE Z TR -

44, RIKERIFHE
AEBRBEMAAEAKEBHITR
HIMEAESTE - FECEERAE
BMrEESHAREE  WAETAE
CEERHAE  AEERAHEIELEH
MK AR50 5k - MiEEAMEL S
B -

AEERGTEEBEZMBARZEE
DR BEBERERERKEFTEKE -
ZMBARARFERAZFEAD

BIREFFFE AR S EF -

AEBERERBNFIZE—BER
RIBZATEEL B EMRK - AEWEIR
W B BRRT A AR IR D R PR AR TR A 2 i

Koo

RGecRaxIBRcERAEAR
1,828,220t (Z T E 1 F
1,052,572/ 70) © DEAEERFERN
FERTET &l Z K -

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
E ;E‘é jied o7 B A B 2 A

43.

44.

&t

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACQUISITION OF MEDICAL AND
DENTAL PRACTICES (Continued)

only and is not necessarily indicative of the turnover
and results of the Group that would actually have
been impacted had the acquisitions been completed
on 1st April, 2005, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution is

matched by employees.

The employees of the Group's subsidiary in
Shanghai, the PRC, are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit scheme in the PRC. The subsidiary
is required to contribute a specified percentage of
their payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to
make the specified contributions under the scheme.
No forfeited contributions are available to reduce

the contribution payable in the future years.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income
statement of HK$1,828,220 (2005: HK$1,052,572)
represents contributions payable to the scheme by

the Group during the year.
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BREAE 45. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
2006 2005
BT BT
HKS$ HK$
REEME  BER Capital expenditure contracted for
REZEFTAN but not provided in the financial
E NN E statements in respect of the
NEE 2 EARRX acquisition of property, plant and
equipment 38,600,000 -

R-_TEZTRF=ZA=+—8 KX&H
PR B R A R — BB A —
MEERLEEIICERSE IR
BT B’/ A R 30,000,0007T © 7% &
EERFRKK -

REMENTH

46.

As at 31st March, 2005, the Group entered into a
letter of intent for the setting up of a medical centre
with a hospital in Beijing, the PRC, for a consideration
of not more than RMB30,000,000, the commitments

was lapsed during the year.

OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS

A E AR A The Group as lessee
2006 2005
BT BT
HK$ HK$
FARDELEHLD Minimum lease payments paid under
Fir < S IR 78 & 5K 18 operating leases in respect
of properties during the year 13,062,776 13,352,264

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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46. REMEN L H ®) 46. OPERATING LEASE

ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

RERER  AEERBETAHEZL At the balance sheet date, the Group had
EHAOARERARTIEHAE N ZR commitments for future minimum leases payments
KExEHESREBELOT : under non-cancellable operating leases which fall

due as follows:

2006 2005

& TT & TT

HK$ HK$

—F R Within one year 21,005,651 11,010,719
F_ZFE0F (BHEEEMF) Inthe second to

fifth year inclusive 17,905,353 14,025,869

38,911,004 25,036,588

REBOFENEASBEREETZ Operating lease payments represent rentals payable

FIRMAEMERN 2HES - HAR by the Group for certain of its clinics and office

T HeRMmE L FHER - premises. Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed

for a term ranging two to five years.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
U BE o B OB 7 B A B 2 A
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HEZZZXF=A=1—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

The Group as lessor

During the year, the Group had property rental
income of HK$737,795 (2005: Nil).
At the balance sheet date, the Group had

commitments for future minimum lease payments

N kkBEEALXENT under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
of premises which would fall due as follows:

2006 2005

BT BT

HK$ HK$

—FR Within one year 1,328,400 -
FE_ZE0F (BHEERMF) Inthe second to fifth year

inclusive 295,050 -

1,623,450 -

FIBEMERRRISFRE2FYEFIE
hARE MR -

EEERH
RZZEXF=A=+—8 £5H
PABREE S 51| 45,585,000/ 7T (=
T4 : 9,975,357 7T) [ 35,825,000/
T(ZETRF M) ZETAEEY
X BMERRBURKREME UK
10,000,000 7t (Z & T 1 F -
10,000,000/ 7T) 2 RITFERIER AR E
BER —RRITHEZER -

==

417.

All of the properties held have committed tenants

for the next 1.5 to 2 years.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st March, 2006, certain property, plant and
equipment and investment properties of the Group
with the carrying value of HK$5,585,000 (2005:
HK$9,975,357) and HK$35,825,000 (2005: HK$Nil)
respectively and bank deposits of HK$10,000,000
(2005: HK$10,000,000) were pledged to secure

general bank facilities granted to the Group.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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48. T EHFBREXRF 48. MAJOR NON-CASH

TRANSACTION

R-_EERE-RB—-H8  AQAFHEE On 2nd February, 2005, the Company entered into
VRERBIVRERS  NEEH a placing agreement with an independent placing
fid £ 32,000,000 7T 7 A R & & o agent in connection with the placing of
AR E AN ENIRER0.037ETY HK$32,000,000 convertible bond. A total of
HMERSRE WO RETA 864,864,864 shares were allotted and issued upon
+£864,864,8640 1% 15 (M1 5£39) ° the conversion in full of the convertible bond at

conversion price at HK$0.037 per share during the
year (note 39).

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
U BE o B OB 7 B A B 2 A
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BARS

BEALER

Name of related party

NEBBERBERLA (Kb
Kowloon Hearing Services
Limited (note b)

LEERERAR (Mia)
Plasmagene Limited (note a)

Rl REERER
BRRE (K

Specially for you International
Development Limited
(note c)

T EEMR R AN B AT
(K ##a)

WYT Holdings and its subsidiaries
(note a)

BREREBR AR (Hifd)
Weissford Development Limited
(note d)

REBRDE (K ita)

Silver Ascot Limited (note a)

BHTFRHMREBRAR (M ia)
Bess Dental Services Limited
(note a)

BEERARLDA (Hia)
Long Faith International Limited
(note a)

= & M B ® %

ANNUAL REPORT 2006 = & & X F F #

AND BALANCES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

significant transactions with related parties:

XHHE
Nature of transactions

BEREER
Purchase of healthcare products

IRNEREES
Laboratory fee paid

XRERE

Consultancy fee paid

XREEE
Management fee paid

INHEE

Promotional fee paid

RmEkERMX
Food and catering expenses
EEREERAX

Management services fee expenses

EERBEYRA

Management services fee income
ERREELA

Management services fee income

EERBEYRA

Management services fee income

2006
BT
HK$

1,924,282

374,000

888,082

49. BEBEATRZ K% 49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following

2005
AT
HK$

2,079,443

426,845

364,000

18,969

12,647

794,765

50,000

1,022,687

126,000

110,204

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
B O/ B B #®
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49. EEEANLTXRZ K& 49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND BALANCES(Continued)

(%)

BEALER
Name of related party

Ho&-EES(EE)
BRRE (K ia)

Next Dimension Advertising

(H.K.) Limited (note a)

F & T Company Limited (Fff #b)
F & T Company Limited (note b)

BAEEFLERDE
(B D)

Skin Health and Laser Centre Limited

(note b)

ERBEBERLA (D)
Essential Health Limited (note b)

wE A RA R (MED)

Hope Rich Limited (note b)

flIEERARAR (B &b)

Mutual consultants Limited (note b)

BEERRE (MED)

Advance Bond Limited (note b)

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited

B =H OB Z2 R &

R

N

=il

REME
Nature of transactions

XEERESR

Promotion and advertising fees paid

XHERE

Consultancy fee paid

EERBERA

Management services fee income

EERBEKRA
Management services fee income
XNERE

Consultancy fee paid

EERBERA

Management services fee income

ERREELA
Management services fee income

ERERBERA

Management services fee income

HERA

Rental income

2006
BT
HK$

98,989

560,434

12,720

135,221

551,275

64,548

2005

BT

HK$

951,386

1,000,000
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

AND BALANCES (Continued)

Notes:

(a) The Group's former associate/existing associate.

(b) A company in which Mr. Lai Kwok Fai is the director
and the shareholder and, is also the director of
the Company's subsidiary, Audio Health Hearing
Care (Shatin) Limited.

(©) A minority shareholder of the Company's non-
wholly owned subsidiary, Harmonic Beauty and
Body Slimming Company Limited.

(d) A company in which Dr. Cho Kwai Chee, Mr. Cho
Kam Luk and Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin are directors
and have beneficial interests.

On 1st March, 2005, the Group acquired property,
plant and equipment from Weissford Development

Limited at a consideration of HK$900,000.

On 31st March, 2006, the Group entered into an
agreement with Dr. Cho Kwai Chee, who is an
executive director of the Company, to further acquire
a 36% interest in Pherson Limited held by Dr. Cho
Kwai Chee at a consideration of HK$990,000.

In addition, Dr. Cho Kwai Chee issued personal
guarantees to a bank to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group during the year ended
31st March, 2006 and 2005 at nil consideration.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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49. BEEE A TXZ K46 49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(4) AND BALANCES (Continued)
REEBHRBHEATERZFES Details of balance with related parties as at the
Nz EEBBEXREMFE28 30 31 balance sheet date are set out in the consolidated
K320 balance sheet and in notes 28, 30, 31 and 32.
EENHEMETEZEREXNBERFANZ The remuneration of directors and other members
MemT of key management during the year was as follows:
2006 2005
BT ow
HKS$ HK$
0 Hf 48 A Short-term benefit 8,172,692 19,441,430
ROKAE T Post-employment benefits 24,000 24,000
8,196,692 19,465,430
br EXFrE TSI - FAWEESEH Save as disclosed above, there were no other
EATIVEMBERARHRFREHR significant transactions with related parties during
BEBENER - the year or significant balances with them at the
end of the year.
50. KEBHREIE 50. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

RZTZRXFWOA—H  AEEZH
NARBEBERESERRAFEEE
ERAERIVIHE B AEBEER
AR(E2,736 3198 TINBELERS
BRAR([MB%R]) Z49%R AR - 18
TR EBEESHEDF -

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited

B B OB B

K & B 2 7

On 1st April, 2006, Town Health Medical Group
Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, entered into an
agreement with Dr. Chow Po Wah whereby the
Group committed to acquire 49% equity interests
in Pak On Medical Co., Limited ("Pak On") at a
consideration of HK$2,736,319. Pak On currently

operates six clinics in Hong Kong.
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

51. BALANCE SHEET OF THE

COMPANY

Non-current assets
Interests in subsidiaries
Investment held for trading

Current assets

Trade and other receivables
Amount due from a subsidiary
Amounts due from associates
Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amount due to a subsidiary

Net current assets (liabilities)
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liability
Convertible bonds

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

2006 2005
BT BT
HK$ HK$
28,537,379 123,244,763
5,189,000 -
33,726,379 123,244,763
2,983,295 1,976,388
213,611,484 13,267,707
1,959,012 232,744
10,000,000 10,000,000
36,208,526 7,073,732
264,762,317 32,550,521
3,076,460 631,380
38,493,082 33,641,577
41,569,542 34,272,957
223,192,775 (1,722,386)
256,919,154 121,522,377
36,692,213 -
220,226,941 121,522,377
49,965,935 17,467,966
170,261,006 104,054,411
220,226,941 121,522,377

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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HE-ZTTRF=F=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

51. X_ R EEBBEXR B

Wi

GG

RZEZMENA—H At 1st April, 2004

Baky Issue of new shares
R #ITRZ Share issue expenses
FEEE Loss for the year

RZZEERF=ZA=+—H At3lst March, 2005

BOHRG Issue of new shares
BOmaRES Issue of convertible
bonds

in&iTH % Share issue expenses

RABRES Issue of shares upon
BERKEG conversion of
%t convertible bonds

EREE Dividend paid

FEFR Loss for the year

RZEEREZA=1—H8 At31st March, 2006
REBZHBABRBRIIERNQT AT
I K 2 T {E 350,000 It B Town
Health (BVI) Limited (RIER =T ZTZT
FHOAET EEEEAEBREBRRN
WE2HMBAR) cBEEFEY
28,530,000 702 =% °

R SR [ 2 A 9 I (e 4 T 48 R IR
PREA ZFRIR -

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
B o7 B A B 2 A

W

51. BALANCE SHEET OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
Note:
Reserves
TRRES
BRHEE BABE TIREE RARE 2 EE ait
Convertible
bonds
Share  Contributed Distributable equity Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
AT B BT B B B
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HK$
135,194,478 28,179,599 72,670,245 - (65124,956) 170,919,366
14,023,854 - - - - 14,023,854
(1,096,763) - - - - (1,096763)
- - - - (79,792,046) (79,792,046)
148,121,569 28,179,599 72,670,245 - (144917002) 104,054,411
64,393,166 - - - - 64,393,166
- - - 3,202,959 - 3,202,959
(4,968,824) - - - - (4,968,824)
21,301,043 - - (942,966) - 20,358,077
- - (9,993,188) - - (9993,188)
- - - - (6785595) (6785,595)
228,846,954 28,179,599 62,677,057 2,259,993 (151,702,597) 170,261,006

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the

difference between the nominal value of
HK$350,000 of the ordinary shares issued by the
Company and the net asset value of approximately
HK$28,530,000 of Town Health (BVI) Limited, a
subsidiary acquired through an exchange of shares

pursuant to the group reorganisation in April 2000.

The distributable reserve of the Company represents
the amount arising from the reduction of share

capital.
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

52. FEME A T
ARFR_FBRF=A=+—-HZ
TEWBARZHE

52. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries
at 31st March, 2006

RARABEZ
BRARE/
AR AEEL A
HRERY/ BRORBERE/ Proportion
ERERER BRPEN of nominal
Place of Issued and value of issued
incorporation/ fully paid capital/registered
RAER form of share capital/ capital held TEEH
Name of company legal entity registered capital by the Company Principal activities
E# R #
Directly Indirectly
Town Health (BVI) Limited RERLES/ 1331,131% T 100% - RE#ZRK
ARAT
British Virgin US$1,331,131 Investment holding
Islands/
limited liability
company
Town Health Sourcing EBRAER/ 1% - 100% EXARREM
Limited BRDA ABERLEAA
British Virgin US$1 Holder of trade name
Islands/ and other intellectual
limited liability property rights
company
Town Health Trademark RERUES e - 1000 EEEBERLM
Limited /BRAT MBERZERA
British Virgin US$1 Holder of trade name
Islands/ and other intellectual
limited liability property rights
company

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited

B o # K

2

K & R 2 7
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52. XEMEA A (&)

EMR I/
ERRERER
Place of
incorporation/
INEEE form of
Name of company legal entity
FRERRRBEBERAA BB/ BRAH
Town Health Management Hong Kong/
and Services Limited limited liability
company
FREERIH B/ ERRA
REBERAA
Town Health Medical & Hong Kong/
Dental Services Limited limited liability
company
FREYBERE B/ ERRA
ARAT
Town Health Para-medical Hong Kong/
Services Limited limited liability
company

K &

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE o B B 7

~ A

Mt &
TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEERNF=ZA=1—HBIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

52. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
RKRAREZ
BRTRE/
ERREEELS
BRORBRRE/ Proportion
R A of nominal
Issued and value of issued
fully paid capital/registered
share capital/ capital held TEEH
registered capital by the Company Principal activities
E# B#
Directly Indirectly
2ET - 1000  BRAE R RITHRS
HK$2 Provision of management
and administrative
services
28T - 100% REBERS
HK$2 Provision of medical
service
28T - 100% REER
HK$2 Investment holding
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FTENRBLAE (8)

NEER
Name of company

REEBBRERS
BRAHF

Town Health Preventive
Healthcare Services
Limited

FRINERAA
Town Health Dental
Limited

ERBRRRARAA

Health Matrix Network
Limited

MBI/
ERERRR
Place of
incorporation/
form of

legal entity

EBALES/
ARDA

British Virgin
Islands/
limited liability

company

B/ ERRA
Hong Kong/
limited liability

company
BB/ BRAA
Hong Kong/

limited liability

company

HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

52. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
RARABEZ
BRTRE/
AR AEEL A
BRARMRRE/ Proportion
BRPEN of nominal
Issued and value of issued
fully paid capital/registered
share capital/ capital held TEEH
registered capital by the Company Principal activities
E# R #
Directly Indirectly
B - 100% REERK
UsS$1 Investment holding
2BT - 1000 BRI ERS
HK$2 Provision of dental
consultation services
ET - 100% REERHEA
REBERE
HK$2 Provision of network

services to medical

cardholders

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
BE R/ B B B B A B 2 A
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52. XEMEA A (&)

NAER

Name of company

FREGEEERAA

Audio Health Hearing Care
Limited

FRESEE (VE) AR

Audio Health Hearing Care
(Shatin) Limited

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
U BE o B B 7 v

ERRLEE/
ERERER
Place of
incorporation/
form of

legal entity

EERAEE/
BRAT

British Virgin
Islands/
limited liability

company
B/ BRALT
Hong Kong/

limited liability

company

AN

Mt &

52. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
AREIHEL
BRTRE/
ERREEELS
BRTRERREK/ Proportion
R A of nominal
Issued and value of issued
fully paid capital/registered
share capital/ capital held
registered capital by the Company
E# GF:

10,000% T

US$10,000

1,000% 7T

HK$1,000

Directly Indirectly

- 51%

- 70%

TEEH

Principal activities

REZK

Investment holding

REENDE R R
HEDBESRE

Provision of audio
diagnostic tests and
sale of hearing-aid

devices
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HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

FTENRBLAE (8)

NAER

Name of company

FRPEREERAF
Town Health Traditional
Chinese Medicine

Services Limited

FREZENMMUBAERRA

Town Health Bio-Medical

Technalogy Limited

Spring Biotech Limited

AMRIHS/
ERERRR
Place of
incorporation/
form of

legal entity

B/ ARLTE
Hong Kong/
limited liability

company

EBRAEE/
ARAT

British Virgin
Islands/
limited liability

company

EBRAEE/
ARAA

British Virgin
Islands/
limited liability

company

52. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
KRABHEZ
BRTRE/
A R A fE L
BRORMERE/ Proportion
BIPEN of nominal
Issued and value of issued
fully paid capital/registered
share capital/ capital held
registered capital by the Company
EE GF:
Directly  Indirectly
2B - 100%
HK$2
1,000% 7T 100% -
US$1,000
3 - 100%
US$1

TEEH

Principal activities

RAER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited

B Oofg B B 7

K & R 2 7
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52. T EM B A A () 52. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
AREIREL
BRARE/
o AR 2 1
AR,/ ERORSRREA/ Proportion
ERREER EfRE of nominal
Place of Issued and value of issued
incorporation/ fully paid capital/registered
NAER form of share capital/ capital held TEEH
Name of company legal entity registered capital by the Company Principal activities
EE GF:
Directly  Indirectly
BRERRAA B/ BRAT BT - 66% REBERTMDERS
Silver Ascot Limited Hong Kong/ HK$3 Provision of medical
limited liability and dental consultation
company services
REARNICERRT BB/ ERDA 2B - 100% BREEZEH
Town Health Food and Hong Kong/ HK$2 Catering business
Beverage Culture Company limited liability
Limited company
FRERERAA B/ BRAH 100,000/ 7 - 510 BEEERL
(RZEERFOA=HuHE
Bifngt 0ERAA)
Wing Health International Limited Hong Kong/ HK$100,000 Operating of a hair

(changed to Nu/Hart Hair limited liability
Solutions Limited

on 3rd April, 2006)

company

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
U BE o B OB 7 B A B 2 A

transplant centre
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52. X EWME A TE (&) 52. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
KRABHZ
BRTRE/
A AR A fE L
ARMRIEE,/ ERTRERKE/ Proportion
ERERER Ef R A of nominal
Place of Issued and value of issued
incorporation/ fully paid capital/registered
RAER form of share capital/ capital held TEEH
Name of company legal entity registered capital by the Company Principal activities
EE GF:

Directly Indirectly

BRBRAT B/ ERRA 100 7T - 70%  WNERERH

Billion Advance Limited Hong Kong/ HK$100 Property investment
limited liability services
company

RRAZLBNERAA B/ ERRA 500,007 1T - 65% EEHETL

Town Health Children's Hong Kong/ HK$500,000 Operation of an education

Land Limited limited liability centre

company

FREFHRERERAA BRE/ERAT 11,595,168/ 7T - - EBHREERK
(MBENRRERAR)
(W3 42¢)

Town Health Medical Bermuda/ HK$11,595,168 Trading and manufacturing
Technology Holdings limited liability of garment
Company Ltd. (previously company

known as Starbow Holdings

Limited (note 42c)

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
E@@@E}Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂu
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52. XEMEA A (&)

(Continued)
AREIHEL
BRARE/
ERRAEELS
MRt/ ERORSRKRE/ Proportion
ERREER EfRE of nominal
Place of Issued and value of issued
incorporation/ fully paid capital/registered
NAER form of share capital/ capital held TEEH
Name of company legal entity registered capital by the Company Principal activities
EE GF:
Directly Indirectly
BAERAF B/ ERRA 10087 - 100% R EERS
Bright Dignity Limited Hong Kong/ HK$100 Provision of medical
limited liability services
company
RREEEXAREE BB/ BRDA 100/ 7T - 70% REXBREERE
BRAT
Harmonic Beauty and Body Hong Kong/ HK$100 Provision of beauty
Slimming Company Limited limited liability and skin care services
company
Dermatonic Skincare & Laser B8/ BRAR 1007 7T - 100% HREKEERER
Treatment Centre Limited Ata B R
Hong Kong/ HK$100 Provision of skincare
limited liability and laser treatment
company services

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
U BE & B OB 7B R A A A

ZEERNF=ZA=1—HBIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

52. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
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FTENRBLAE (8)

LAER

Name of company

BEBENE
ARRA

First Oriental Medical
Technology Group
Limited

REBRENEERAT
First Oriental Medical

Technalogy Limited

First Oriental Cyclotron

Limited

AR/
ERERER
Place of
incorporation/
form of

legal entity

EBRAEE/
ARAT

British Virgin
Islands/
limited liability

company

B/ ARLE
Hong Kong/
limited liability

company

&/ BRAT
Hong Kong/
limited liability

company

52. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
LNCEY
ERTRE/
AR A fE L
BRORBERE/ Proportion
BRPEN of nominal
Issued and value of issued
fully paid capital/registered
share capital/ capital held
registered capital by the Company
E# GF:
Directly Indirectly
1,100% 7T - 51%
US$1,100
1,000,000/ 7 - 51%
HK$1,000,000
1,000,0007% 7T - 94%

HK$1,000,000

TEEH

Principal activities

REER

Investment holding

RAER

Investment holding

EEBRARMLE
Production of isotopes

for medical uses

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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ZEERNF=ZA=1—HBIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

52. T EM B A A () 52. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
AREIHEL
BRARE/
ERRAEELS
MRt/ ERORSRKRE/ Proportion
ERREER BRIPEN of nominal
Place of Issued and value of issued
incorporation/ fully paid capital/registered
NAER form of share capital/ capital held TEEH
Name of company legal entity registered capital by the Company Principal activities
EE GF:
Directly Indirectly
HEEEERARAR ARRRHE/ 800X 56.13% - RERRK
BRAT
Pacific Medical (Holding) British Virgin US$800 Investment holding
Company Limited Islands/
limited liability
company
Pacific Medical (Hong Kong) BB/ AR 10078 T - 56.13% HELEMREAROE
Company Limited BEMIFHES
Hong Kong/ HK$100 Sales of cardiology
limited liability and peripheral vascular
company related surgical equipment
Pacific Medical (China) BE/BRAA 100% 7T - 56.13% HELEMEREENE
Company Limited REMFHES
Hong Kong/ HK$100 Sales of cardiology
limited liability and peripheral vascular
company related surgical equipment

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
U BE & B OB 7B R A A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEZTZTRXF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

52. X EMB AT (&) 52. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
RARABEZ
BRTRE/
A AR A fE
AMRIHE,/ ERTRERKA/ Proportion
ERERER BPEN of nominal
Place of Issued and value of issued
incorporation/ fully paid capital/registered
NEER form of share capital/ capital held TEEHR
Name of company legal entity registered capital by the Company Principal activities

E# R #
Directly Indirectly

Pacific Medical (China) RERLES/ 2ETL - 56.13%
Group Company Limited ARAR
British Virgin US$2
Islands/
limited liability
company
LEREABRE hE/ N EBELE 200,000% 7T - 56.13%
ARAT
PRC/ US$200,000
wholly owned

foreign enterprise

Pherson Limited B 500,000% 7T - 69%
Hong Kong HK$500,000

HELEMREENLE
BENM TGS
Sales of cardiology
and peripheral vascular

related surgical equipment

HWELHEMREENE
RENFHES
Sales of cardiology
and peripheral vascular

related surgical equipment

nERE

Property investments

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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& M B % % MW &
S TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEERNF=ZA=1—HBIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2006

52. XEWNB AT (&) 52. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

PRI EEFRBRUAEEREXE The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group

EBEEARYEZAEEWNBAR - & which, in the opinion of the directors, principally

ERRCIIEHMMBRAR ZFMAE affected the results or assets of the Group. To give

BEEHRERBRITE details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, results in particulars of excessive
length.

3 B A B B A% Bk 6 A o] R None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities

RHEEMBRERZEBES subsisting at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
U BE o B OB 7 B A B 2 A
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

X RESULTS
BE=ZA=+—HLEE
Year ended 31st March,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
FE T FAET FEXT FAET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

B Turnover 231,179 179,536 109,717 123,878 100,030
F 2 A Profit (loss) for

(E#8) the year 21,448 (78,381) (87,269) 4,884 2,173
FEAL - Attributable to:

/NS )i g Equity holders of

BEA the Company 20,020 (84,331) (87,669) 4,741 2,029
DEREEZE  Minority interests 1,418 5,950 400 143 144
21,448 (78,381) (87,269) 4,884 2,173
EERER Balance sheet
R=A=+—H
At 31st March,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

TR THET THET TAT TAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BEE Total assets 397,507 177,288 219,727 323,391 262,821
mAamE Total liabilities (149,002) (41,905) (25,956) (68,441) (53,720)
FEE Net liabilities 248,505 135,383 193,771 254,950 209,101

IN/NST P g Assets attributable
B AR to equity holders

BE of the Company 249,155 123,414 189,842 254,881 208,926
LEREAEZ  Minority interests (650) 11,969 3,929 69 175
FEE S Shareholders’ funds 248,505 135,383 193,771 254,950 209,101

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
B O/ B B B KR A R 2 7 % ;



